
 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL MEETING @ 7:00 PM 
City Hall Council Chamber 

120 East Main Street – Apopka, Florida 32703 
June 17, 2015 

 
 
INVOCATION  

Elder Shirley Sharpe-Terrell 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

If you wish to appear before the City Council, please submit a Notice of Intent to Speak card 

to the City Clerk. 

PRESENTATIONS 

1. Recognition of Wekiva High School students Lauren Earnest, Tony Truong, Andy 

Obregon and teacher Chris Whitlow for competing in the Cooking Up Change national 

competition in Washington DC. 

2. Advanced Institute for Elected Municipal Officials - Presented by Kathy Till, Florida 

League of Cities 

3. Leadership Orange - Presented by School Board Member Christine Moore 

4. Apopka Community Theater - Presented by Jim Meadows 

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Approve the minutes from the regular City Council meeting held on June 3, 2015 at 

1:30 p.m.  

Page 1



Page 2 
 

 

2. Approve the minutes of Administrative Bid Opening No. 2015-05 for Apopka Northwest 

Recreation Complex Canopy Shade Structures held on May 27, 2015, at 10:15 a.m. 

3. Authorize the issuance of a Peddler's Permit, to TNT Fireworks, to sell State approved 

fireworks at 1700 South Orange Blossom Trail, from June 24, 2015 until July 5, 2015.  

4. Authorize the issuance of a Peddler's Permit, to TNT Fireworks, to sell State approved 

fireworks at 2302-2444 East Semoran Boulevard from June 24, 2015 until July 5, 2015. 

5. Approve the first extension of the contracts for the consulting services for Geotechnical 

and Environmental Engineering Services with Ardaman and Associates, Inc. and 

Universal Engineering Sciences, for one year, at the same unit rate. 

6. Acknowledge notification of the 2015 Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) application to 

purchase software and hardware to provide the ability to retrieve data from the Event 

Data Recorder (EDR). 

LEGISLATIVE ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

1. ORDINANCE NO. 2436 - SECOND READING AND ADOPTION - Amending the 

Election Date, Runoff Date, and Qualifying Dates associated with the 2016 City 

General Election.  

2. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-11 - Amending the Procurement Policy to increase the Local 

Business Preference from 1% to 3%. 

QUASI-JUDICIAL: ORDINANCES AND SITE APPROVALS 

1. ORDINANCE NO. 2435 – FIRST READING – CHANGE OF ZONING/SMALL LOT 

OVERLAY DISTRICT MASTER PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – Silver 

Oaks – owned by Tallman Development Company, c/o Ed Hampden; engineer is 

Poulos & Bennett, LLC, c/o Marc Stehli, P.E. – From R-3 to R-3/Small Lot Overlay 

District, for property located north of East Keene Road, west of South Sheeler Avenue 

(2220 S. Sheeler Road). (Parcel ID Nos. 22-21-28-0000-00-078, 22-21-28-0000-00-

079, 22-21-28-0000-00-081, 22-21-28-0000-00-082, 22-21-28-0000-00-105, 22-21-28-

0000-00-108, 22-21-28-0000-00-109, 22-21-28-0000-00-114, 22-21-28-0000-00-117, 

22-21-28-0000-00-122) 

2. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT – Rock Springs Estates, owned by Rock Springs 

Estates; applicant is Pulte Group, c/o Doug Hoffman, P.E.; engineering firm is Donald 

W. McIntosh Associates, Inc., c/o John T. Townsend, P.E., located south of West 

Lester Road, east of Vick Road. (Parcel ID Nos. 3-20-28-0000-00-015, 33-20-28-0000-

00-118, 33-20-28-0000-00-003)  

3. PLAT REVISION – Maudehelen, Ph. 3, owned by GK Maudehelen, LLLP; 

applicant/engineer Morris Engineering and Consulting, LLC, c/o Matthew J. Morris, 

Page 2



Page 3 
 

 

P.E., for property located at 455 South Binion Road. (Parcel ID Nos. 07-21-28-0000-

00-004; 07-21-28-0000-00-052) 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS AND BIDS 

1. Administrative Report - Glenn A. Irby - City Administrator 

MAYOR'S REPORT 

OLD BUSINESS 

     1.   COUNCIL 

     2.   PUBLIC 

NEW BUSINESS 

     1.   COUNCIL 

     2.   PUBLIC 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

********************************************************************************************************** 
All interested parties may appear and be heard with respect to this agenda.  Please be advised that, under state law, if you decide to appeal 
any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, you will need a record of the 
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, you may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes a 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.   The City of Apopka does not provide a verbatim record.    
 
In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), persons with disabilities needing a special accommodation to participate in any 
of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk's Office at 120 East Main Street, Apopka, FL  32703, telephone (407) 703-1704, no less 
than 48 hours prior to the proceeding. 
  

Page 3



Page 4 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Apopka Community Theater - Presented by Jim Meadows 

  

Page 4



Page 5



Introduction & Mission Statement

The city name, “Apopka”, is derived from two Creek words, 

“Aha”, meaning “potato” and “papka” meaning “eating place”.  

With a respectful bow to “Ahapopka”, 
we’ve named our theatre troupe the 

“AHA Players”.

Page 6



 To be the quintessential performing arts center bringing exemplary
theatrical productions along with music, comedy, and a variety of
entertainment to the residents of Apopka & Central Florida.

 To support all art forms and its artists, allowing students and artists to 
learn and practice their craft.

 To enhance and support the community through the arts and offered 
programs.

Page 7



 To provide educational programs in the arts to the youth of the 
community.

 To partner with other non-profit groups to mutually support shared 
interests.

This is the mission of the 
“AHA Players Apopka Community Theatre, Inc.”

Page 8



Cultural & Community Benefits of a 
Resident Community Theatre

 Community theatres involve more participants, present more 
performances of more productions, and play to more people than any 
performing art in the country. They are critical to the cultural life of their 
communities..

 Provide a quality entertainment, intellectual stimulation, challenge and 
opportunity, to be worthy contributors to an improved quality of life for 
the communities they serve.

 The arts create vibrant, lively neighborhoods, revitalize communities and 
bring tourists and new residents to an area.

Page 9



Cultural & Community Benefits of a Resident 
Community Theatre (continued)

 Partner with other local non-profits to help generate awareness & $$$$ for 
the charitable organizations.

as they experience an afternoon or evening of entertainment.
 Theatre helps to bridge the gap between the people of all racial and 

economic backgrounds. 

 The AHA Players will strive to achieve diversity by promoting inclusion and 
accessibility through its work, programs, performances, artists, and the 
patrons it serves. Embrace Diversity - Believe in Difference - Value Difference.

 Helps generate civic engagement and community pride
Page 10



Cultural & Community Benefits of a Resident 
Community Theatre (continued)

 Volunteer participation from the diverse spectrum of the community. 
Community theaters need more than just cast members. Anyone that can 
sew a costume, paint a backdrop, build a staircase, or edit a sound effect is 
a desirable addition to the company. Novices of a particular skill, such as 
construction or lighting, can increase their ability by working alongside 
veteran craftsmen. Likewise, experts can enjoy sharing their knowledge 
and passing their craftsmanship.

to the next generation.
 Socialize with new people gathered to join efforts in mounting a production 

and building an Arts Center.

Helps generate civic engagement and community pride

Page 11



Economic Benefits of a Resident 
Community Theatre

 AHA Players is committed to supporting local businesses. to the next 
generation.

 More than 50 percent of theater patrons visit a restaurant prior to 
attending a performance.

 Arts and cultural activity can increase attention and foot traffic to an area.

 Cultural and creative amenities are assets as well as excellent tools for 
identifying and promoting other community assets.

Page 12



Economic Benefits of a Resident 
Community Theatre (continued) 

 A vibrant arts community plays a key role in the health of a region and 
helps to attract businesses. to 

the next generation.
 Attendance at arts events generates related commerce for local businesses 

such as restaurants and retail stores.

Page 13



The 182 Arts & Economic Prosperity IV Study Regions (2012-Florida Subset)

State Study Region Region Type
2010 

Population

Spending by 
Nonprofit Arts and 

Culture Organizations

Spending by 
Nonprofit Arts and 
Culture Audiences

Total Spending by the 
Nonprofit Arts and 
Culture INDUSTRY

ECONOMIC IMPACT OF INDUSTRY SPENDING

Full-Time Resident Local State

Equivalent Household Government Government

Jobs Income Revenue Revenue

Supported Generated Generated Generated

FL Alachua County C 243,574 $32,337,690 $53,153,848 $85,491,538 2,344 $49,827,000 $3,220,000 $4,042,000

FL Broward County F 1,766,476 $102,990,228 $126,877,854 $229,868,082 6,402 $157,263,000 $10,889,000 $11,011,000

FL Central Florida Region Regional 3,698,071 $98,950,181 $165,039,213 $263,989,394 8,966 $199,855,000 $15,249,000 $20,596,000

FL City of Miami D 413,201 $342,575,781 $233,887,365 $576,463,146 13,991 $441,017,000 $22,020,000 $35,658,000

FL City of Miami Beach B 84,633 $97,961,950 $56,323,841 $154,285,791 4,311 $140,711,000 $6,695,000 $10,513,000

FL City of Orlando C 230,519 $48,132,075 $45,874,130 $94,006,205 3,487 $77,100,000 $3,803,000 $4,765,000

FL City of Winter Park A 27,909 $15,982,824 $26,578,730 $42,561,554 1,478 $29,997,000 $1,680,000 $1,949,000

FL Lee County E 586,908 $23,141,643 $45,143,166 $68,284,809 2,038 $48,103,000 $3,600,000 $5,801,000

FL Miami-Dade County F 2,500,625 $673,958,759 $402,224,799 $1,076,183,558 29,792 $935,293,000 $39,212,000 $65,731,000

FL Orange County F 1,086,480 $70,665,797 $110,252,107 $180,917,904 6,703 $128,738,000 $7,458,000 $8,308,000

FL Osceola County D 270,618 $1,891,223 $499,214 $2,390,437 78 $1,749,000 $53,000 $141,000

FL Palm Beach County F 1,279,950 $138,895,426 $111,052,882 $249,948,308 5,782 $135,847,000 $11,348,000 $12,583,000

FL Polk County E 583,403 $2,664,450 $7,801,775 $10,466,225 338 $7,581,000 $566,000 $854,000

FL Sarasota County D 369,765 $129,273,630 $50,749,733 $180,023,363 4,579 $134,363,000 $7,580,000 $12,556,000

FL Seminole County D 413,204 $2,057,892 $1,301,516 $3,359,408 102 $2,383,000 $170,000 $257,000

FL Volusia County D 495,890 $10,072,822 $15,935,543 $26,008,365 792 $18,109,000 $1,540,000 $2,140,000

* The 139 city and county study regions are stratified into six population groups based on the U.S. Census Bureau's estimated 2010 population: Group A (fewer than 50,000), Group B (50,000 to 99,999), Group C (100,000 to 249,999), Group D (250,000 to 499,999), Group E (500,000 to 999,999), and Group F 
(1,000,000 or more).  The 43 remaining study regions are multi-city or multi-county regions, statewide study regions, or individual arts districts.

Economic Benefits of a Resident 
Community Theatre (continued) 

Source: Arts and Economic Prosperity IV, Americans for the 
Arts, 2012 (www.AmericansForTheArts.org/EconomicImpact). 

Page 14



Theatres in Neighboring 

Communities

 Sonnentag Theatre at the IceHouse
 Mount Dora Center for the Arts

 Bay Street Players

 Moonlight Players
 Clermont Performing Arts Center

 Winter Park Playhouse
 Breakthrough Theatre

 Wayne Densch Performing Arts Center

 Melon Patch Theatre

 Athens Theatre

 Garden Theatre

 Tavares Community Theater CompanyPage 15



Proposed AHA Players Programs

 Main Stage productions

 Second Stage productions

 Special Events (Music, Comedy, Variety)- Hosted or Produced

 Youth Theatre (Young AHA Players)

 Meet the Author series

 Active Participant in Community events

 Classes & WorkshopsPage 16



MAIN STAGE
5 Productions (6 performances/each production)

SPECIAL EVENTS - produced by the AHA Players
3 – 5 productions  (1 – 3 performances/each event)

YOUNG AHA PLAYERS
3 – 5 Productions  (3 performances/each production)

Proposed 1st Season - Productions & Special Events

Page 17



Main Stage 
Productions

• Steel Magnolias

• Rounding Third

• Lombardi

• Driving Miss Daisy

• The Fantasticks

AHA Players produced 
Special Events

• Broadway Cabaret

• Christmas Cabaret

• Love Letters

• Rejoice! An Evening of 
Gospel

Hosted Special Events
• Johnny Dee & 

the Starlights
• Cash & Friends
• Duets
• Improv Comedy Troupe
• 6 Guitars
• The Blackwood Brothers 

with Elvis
• Ladies Night Comedy
• Mickey Carroll - Jazz
• Blend - Acapella
• David Oliver Willis

Potential Productions & Special Events

Page 18



Steel Magnolias

• Fridays & Saturdays, September 18 - 26, 2015 @ 8:00 PM

• Sundays, September 20 & 27 @ 2 PM

• Optional performance Thursday, September 24, 2015 @ 8 PM

Rounding Third

• Fridays & Saturdays, November 13 - 21, 2015 @ 8:00 PM

• Sundays, September 15 & 22 @ 2 PM

• Optional performance Thursday, November 19, 2015 @ 8 PM

Lombardi

• Fridays & Saturdays, February 19 - 27, 2015 @ 8:00 PM

• Sundays, September 21 & 28 @ 2 PM

• Optional performance Thursday, February 25, 2015 @ 8 PM

Driving Miss Daisy

• Fridays & Saturdays, April 15 - 23, 2015 @ 8:00 PM

• Sundays, April 17 & 24 @ 2 PM

• Optional performance Thursday, April 21, 2015 @ 8 PM

The Fantasticks

• Fridays & Saturdays, June 17- 25, 2015 @ 8:00 PM

• Sundays, June 19 & 26 @ 2 PM

• Optional performance Thursday, June 23, 2015 @ 8 PM

Apopka Community Theatre  Inaugural Season  2015-2016  - Main Stage Performance Calendar

• All performances at the Apopka Community Center / VFW
• Main Stage Production Tech Rehearsals at the Community 

Center start the Sunday prior to opening night (3 PM – 8 PM) 
with rehearsals Mon-Thurs from 7 PM – 11 PM

• 35 Main Stage performances will take place at the Apopka 
Community Center

• The Apopka Community Center will be used 60 days for Main 
Stage projects (including tech rehearsal days). The Community 
Center will be used 66 days when including the 6 days for Special 
Event performances.

• Special Events may require 1 – 2 days setup / rehearsal time in 
the Apopka Community Center.

Broadway Cabaret Saturday, October 17, 2015 8:00 PM

Broadway Cabaret Sunday, October 18, 2015 2:00 PM

Christmas Cabaret Saturday, December 19, 2015 8:00 PM

Christmas Cabaret Sunday, December 20, 2015 2:00 PM

Rejoice-Evening of Gospel Music Saturday, March 19, 2016 8:00 PM

Rejoice-Evening of Gospel Music Sunday, March 20, 2016 2:00 PM

Special Events to be produced by the AHA Players and 
performed at the Apopka Community Center

Page 19



Steel Magnolias

• Auditions: July 13 & 14, 2015,  7 - 9 PM

• Rehearsals: Mon - Thurs, July 27 - September 10, 2015,  7 – 9 PM

Rounding Third

• Auditions: September 28 & 29, 2015,  7 - 9 PM

• Rehearsals: Mon - Thurs, October 5 - November 5, 2015,  7 – 9 PM

Lombardi

• Auditions: January 4 & 5, 2016,  7 - 9 PM

• Rehearsals: Mon - Thurs, January 11 – February 11, 2016,  7 – 9 PM

Driving Miss Daisy

• Auditions: February 29 & March 1, 2016,  7 - 9 PM

• Rehearsals: Mon-Thurs, March 14 – April 7, 2016,  7 – 9 PM

The Fantasticks

• Auditions: April 25 & 26, 2015,  7 - 9 PM

• Rehearsals: Mon-Thurs, May 9 – June 9, 2016,  7 – 9 PM

Apopka Community Theatre  - Audition & Rehearsal Schedule - Fran Carlton Center

• All Main Stage production auditions and rehearsals (except for tech 
week) will take place at the Fran Carlton Center.

• The Fran Carlton Center will be used ~100 days for Main Stage auditions 
and rehearsals.

• Apopka Community Theatre public meetings will be scheduled at the 
Fran Carlton Center. Public meetings will take place once a month.

• Young AHA Players, the Apopka Community Theatre youth theatre 
program will have classes conducted at the Fran Carlton Center. Classes 
will be held in the  afternoon, twice a week.

• Special Event rehearsals may be scheduled to take place a the Fran 
Carlton Center.

Page 20



Young AHA Players
Benefits of a Youth Theatre Program 

 Self Confidence 

 Public Speaking

 Creativity

 Commitment

 Dedication

 Improved Academic Achievements  
Page 21



 City of Apopka

 Apopka Chamber of Commerce

 The Big Potato Foundation

 John H. Land Community Trust

 Business Sponsors / Donors / Advertisers

 Individual Sponsors /Donors

 Orange County Public School

 The Apopka Woman’s Club

 The Foliage Sertoma Club of Apopka

 Apopka & Wekiva High School Student Groups (Community Service  Hours)

Requested Partnerships & Sponsorships

“In Kind”, Services, Promotions, & Financial Support

Page 22



Apopka Community Center / VFW
Main Stage/ Second Stage / Special Events

Fran Carlton Center
Meetings / Rehearsal Space /  Young AHA Players classes

Apopka Amphitheater
Special Events

Apopka Schools (OCPS)
Young AHA Players performances

Prospective Performance Venues

Page 23



INFRASTRUCTURE/LOGISTICS

VOLUNTEERS

SPONSORS

DONORS

ADVERTISERS

“IN KIND” SERVICE PROVIDERS

PATRONS/AUDIENCE MEMBERS

What the AHA Players 
Need From the Community

Page 24



There is that smaller world which is the stage,
And that larger stage which is the world. 

Apopka Community Theatre
AHA Players

Page 25



Page 26 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Approve the minutes from the regular City Council meeting held on June 3, 2015 at 

1:30 p.m.  

  

Page 26



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on June 3, 2015, at 1:30 p.m., in the City 

of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:  Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

  Commissioner Bill Arrowsmith 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

  Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

  Commissioner Sam Ruth 

  Attorney Cliff Shepard 

  City Administrator Glenn Irby 

  

PRESS PRESENT:      John Peery - The Apopka Chief;  WFTV News 9 

 

INVOCATION – Commissioner Arrowsmith gave the invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Mayor Kilsheimer said on June 1, 1942, Apopka leaders voted 

unanimously to enter into a five year agreement with Dr. Tommy McBride for the Apopka 

Municipal Airport. With the country deeply involved in the war effort and the military in need of 

skilled pilots, Doctor McBride and his wife, an accomplished aviatrix, Helen McBride, 

successfully appealed to the City to partner in development of a pilot training school at the City’s 

airfield which was located on what is now Dream Lake Elementary School. By the middle of 

1943, it was reported that Helen McBride had trained more than 300 bomber pilots. He asked 

everyone to remember the contributions of the McBride family to Apopka’s history and certainly 

to the success of our Country’s war efforts during World War II as he led in the Pledge of 

Allegiance. 

 

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 

 

1. David Wright – Public Services/Waste Water Plants – Five Year Service Award - Waste 

Water Plant Operator “A” – David began working for the City on May 24, 2010, as a 

Waste Water Plant Operator “A”, which is his current position. The City Council joined 

Mayor Kilsheimer in congratulating David on his years of service to the City. 

 

2. Jodi Yoham – Police Department/Communications – Five Year Service Award - 

Communication Technician –Jodi started with the City on May 26, 2010, as a 

Communication Technician, which is her current position. The City Council joined Mayor 

Kilsheimer in congratulating Jodi on her years of service to the City. 

 

3. Marc Norelia – Public Services/Sanitation – Ten Year Service Award - Sanitation 

Equipment Operator – Marc began working for the City on May 2, 2005, as a Solid Waste 

Worker II.  On June 16, 2007, he was reclassified to Sanitation Equipment Operator, which is 

his current position. Marc was not present and his award will be presented another time. 

 

 

Page 27



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on June 3, 2015, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 2 of 13  

4. Jessica Schilling – Public Services/Water Treatment – Ten Year Service Award - Water 

Conservation Specialist – Jessica started working for the City on May 2, 2005, as a Water 

Conservation Specialist, which is her current position. The City Council joined Mayor 

Kilsheimer in congratulating Jessica on her years of service to the City. 

 

5. Edwin “Ed” Chittenden – Police Department/Support Services – Fifteen Year Service 

Award - Police Sergeant –Ed began working for the City on May 15, 2000, as a Police 

Officer.  On October 27, 2013, he was promoted to Police Sergeant, which is his current 

position. The City Council joined Mayor Kilsheimer in congratulating Ed on his years of 

service to the City. 

 

6. Shirley Hambley – Finance/Accounting & Budget – Fifteen Year Service Award - 
Accounts Payable Specialist –Shirley started working for the City on May 30, 2000, as a 

Data Entry/Customer Service Clerk for Utility Billing.  On August 27, 2012, Shirley was 

promoted to Accounts Payable Specialist, which is her current position. The City Council 

joined Mayor Kilsheimer in congratulating Shirley on her years of service to the City. 

 

7. Wilburn “Mike” Roberson – Building/Community Development – Twenty Year Service 

Award - Construction Inspector –Mike began working for the City on May 3, 1995, as a 

Utility Service Worker I in Utility Construction.  On April 8, 1996, he was transferred to the 

Building Department and his title changed to Construction Inspector, which is his current 

position. Mike was not present and his award will be presented at another time.  

 

 

PRESENTATIONS 
 
1. Presentation of Check – Lorena Potter, Interim Manager of Recreation Operations and 

Maintenance, presented a check in the amount of $1,000 to Keri Stagner & Donna Amato, 

representatives for the American Cancer Society's Relay for Life event in Apopka 

 

2. Garden Week Proclamation – Mayor Kilsheimer read the proclamation and presented it to 

Morgan Martin, representing the founders of the Billie Dean Community Garden. 

 

Isadora Dean on behalf of Mr. Peter Jordan, a teacher at Ocoee High School, said many 

thanks and well done to the Apopka Billie Dean Community Garden. She said that she and 

Mr. Jordan came up with the idea of a community garden and they could not have done this 

without the help of John Cloran, a retiring teacher of Apopka Middle School, Mr. Alexander 

Smith, teacher at Dr. Phillips High School, and the agriculture teachers of Piedmont Middle 

and Wekiva High Schools. They thanked Mr. Morgan for taking this over and doing a 

fantastic job, as well as thanking the City staff for their assistance.  

3. Code Enforcement Officers' Appreciation Week Proclamation – Mayor Kilsheimer read the 

proclamation and presented it to Chief Manley who introduced the Code Enforcement 

Officers, David Whitty and Bernard Jeanty. 

Page 28



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on June 3, 2015, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 3 of 13  

4. Pre-Budget Presentation - Presented by Chief Bronson 

 

Chief Bronson provided a Power Point presentation on his upcoming fiscal year budget and 

said the main area he was going to address was the need for a new Fire Station, vehicles and 

equipment, and some essential medical equipment, as well as two replacement staff vehicles. 

He said the City is growing and the land continues to be developed. In 2014, the Apopka Fire 

Department responded to more than 5,300 emergency calls, and 80% of those calls were 

medical emergencies. The call volume has steadily increased by an average of 2% each year. 

The City is currently covered by four stations: Station 1 responds to an average of 2,400 

emergency calls per year, Station 2 responds to around 1,100 calls per years, Station 3 

handles 1,000 calls per year, and Station 4 responds to an additional 900 emergencies per 

year. He declared this arrangement of centrally located Fire Stations has served the City very 

well up to this point in time. However, with the expected growth in the north and south 

regions of the City, additional stations will be needed to adequately cover these locations. He 

advised the first location for this consideration is a large area to the north which may 

experience some response times that border being acceptable to ISO and NFPA standards. 

The second location for consideration is to the south where new commercial and residential 

construction is planned. This growth could greatly increase the call volume for the station 

that currently serves this area. He went on to review the required equipment and the vehicle 

inventory, as well as replacement of vehicles and equipment.  

 

Chief Bronson responded in the affirmative when Commissioner Dean inquired if the Fire 

Department had a ladder truck to accommodate the height of the new hospital. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

1. Approve the minutes from the regular City Council meeting held on May 6, 2015 at 1:30 

p.m. 

2. Approve the minutes from the regular City Council meeting held on May 20, 2015 at 7:00 

p.m. 

3. Authorize the issuance of a Peddler's Permit to First American Fireworks to sell State 

approved fireworks at 511 South Orange Blossom Trail, from June 15, 2015 until July 5, 

2015. 

4. Authorize the Mayor, or his designee, to execute the Sewer and Water Capacity 

Agreement for Hillside at Wekiva (fka Ponkan Reserve North) (51 Lots). 

5. Authorize a credit, in the amount of $4,523.01, to Carlos Hernandez for a sanitary sewer 

forcemain oversize line. 

6. Authorize the funding for the mitigation of gopher turtles at the Northwest Recreation 

Complex, in the amount of $90,903.00, and award the contract to Thomson Environmental 

Consultant, in the amount of $9,350.00, for the consulting fees. 

7. Approve the purchase of property, in the amount of $25,000, located at 1840 Plymouth 

Sorrento Road, and to include closing costs and the seller's attorney's fees, for a total cost of 

$29,456.53. 

 

Page 29



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on June 3, 2015, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 4 of 13  

8. Approve the purchase of property, in the amount of $22,400.00, located at 2984 W. Orange 

Avenue, and to also include survey fees, for a total cost not to exceed $22,900.00. 

9. Ratification of a steering committee to ensure fair representation of all geographical areas in 

the City, as the Community-Wide Visioning Process moves forward. 

10. Approve the Disbursement Report for the month of May, 2015. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith and seconded by Commissioner Ruth to approve 

the ten items on the Consent Agenda.  

 

Pastor Hezekiah Bradford said he agreed with Commissioner Dean with regards to representation 

of South Apopka and stated he would like to volunteer to serve on the steering committee for the 

Community-wide Visioning process.  

 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

SPECIAL REPORTS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS – No Special Reports or Public Hearings. 

 

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

 

1. ORDINANCE NO. 2429 – SECOND READING & ADOPTION – COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – Everlasting Covenant 

Christian Center, Inc. from Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) to Office (0.3 FAR), for property 

located west of Piedmont Wekiwa Road, north of US 441. (1250 Piedmont Wekiwa 

Road). (Parcel ID #: 13-21-28-0000-00-071) [Ordinance No. 2429 meets the 

requirements for adoption having been advertised in The Apopka Chief on May 22, 

2015.] The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2429 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM RESIDENTIAL LOW 

(0-5 DU/AC) TO OFFICE (0.30 FAR) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF PIEDMONT WEKIWA ROAD, 

NORTH OF US 441, COMPRISING 2.73 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND 

OWNED BY EVERLASTING COVENANT CHRISTIAN CENTER, INC.; 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. 

 

Scott Banta said he was the applicant and they concur with staff, stating he was present to 

answer any questions. 

Page 30



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on June 3, 2015, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 5 of 13  

 

No others wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth and seconded by Commissioner Arrowsmith, to 

adopt Ordinance No. 2429. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

2. ORDINANCE NO. 2430 – SECOND READING & ADOPTION – CHANGE OF ZONING 

Everlasting Covenant Christian Center, Inc. from R-1 to Planned Unit Development 

(PUD-PO/I), for property located west of Piedmont Wekiwa Road, north of US 441. 

(1250 Piedmont Wekiwa Road). (Parcel ID #: 13-21-28-0000-00-071) [Ordinance No. 

2430 meets the requirements for adoption having been advertised in The Apopka Chief on 

May 22, 2015.] The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2430 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM  R-1 TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT  

(PUD/PO/I) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED 

WEST OF PIEDMONT WEKIWA ROAD, NORTH OF U.S. 441, SOUTH 

OF EAST SEMORAN BOULEVARD (1250 PIEDMONT WEKIWA 

ROAD)  (1250 PIEDMONT WEKIWA ROAD), COMPRISING 2.73 

ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY EVERLASTING 

COVENANT CHRISTIAN CENTER, INC.; PROVIDING FOR 

DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised this was a quasi-judicial hearing and witnesses were sworn in by 

the City Clerk. 

 

There were no ex parte communications and no staff presentation.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing.  

 

Scott Banta, applicant, said he was present to answer any questions. 

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Dean and seconded by Commissioner Arrowsmith, to 

adopt Ordinance No. 2430. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

3. ORDINANCE NO. 2431 – SECOND READING & ADOPTION – COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – Joseph E. and Jeff P. 

Page 31



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on June 3, 2015, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 6 of 13  

Ball, from Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) to Office (0.3 FAR), for property located west of 

Piedmont Wekiwa Road, north of US 441. (1166 Piedmont Wekiwa Road). (Parcel ID #: 

13-21-28-0000-00-030) [Ordinance No. 2431 meets the requirements for adoption having 

been advertised in The Apopka Chief on May 22, 2015.] The City Clerk read the title as 

follows:  

ORDINANCE NO. 2431 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM RESIDENTIAL LOW 

(0-5 DU/AC) TO OFFICE (0.30 FAR) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF PIEDMONT WEKIWA ROAD, 

NORTH OF US 441, COMPRISING 6.49 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND 

OWNED BY JOSEPH E. BALL AND JEFF P. BALL; PROVIDING FOR 

SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. 

 

Scott Banta, applicant, said he was present to answer any questions. 

 

No others wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velasquez and seconded by Commissioner Ruth, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2431. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

4. ORDINANCE NO. 2432 – SECOND READING & ADOPTION – CHANGE OF ZONING 

Joseph E. and Jeff P. Ball, from R-1 to Planned Unit Development (PUD-PO/I), for 

property located west of Piedmont Wekiwa Road, north of US 441. (1166 Piedmont 

Wekiwa Road). (Parcel ID #: 13-21-28-0000-00-030) [Ordinance No. 2432 meets the 

requirements for adoption having been advertised in The Apopka Chief on May 22, 

2015.] The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2432 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM R-1 TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

(PUD/PO/I) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED 

WEST OF PIEDMONT WEKIWA ROAD, NORTH OF U.S. 441, SOUTH 

OF SEMORAN BOULEVARD (1166 PIEDMONT WEKIWA ROAD), 

COMPRISING 6.49 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY JOSEPH 

E. BALL AND JEFF P. BALL; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 

Page 32



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on June 3, 2015, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 7 of 13  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised this was a quasi-judicial hearing and witnesses were sworn in by 

the City Clerk.  He advised staff presentation was previously given. 

 

Scott Banta, applicant, was present for any questions. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth and seconded by Commissioner Arrowsmith, to 

adopt Ordinance No. 2432. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

5. ORDINANCE NO. 2433 – SECOND READING & ADOPTION – CHANGE OF 

ZONING/MASTER PLAN – Avian Pointe – Apopka Clear Lake Investments, LLC – 

From “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD) (89.47 AC) and “County” A-2 (ZIP) (5.29 

AC) to “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-3), for property located east of S.R. 

429, south of Peterson Road, and north of Lust Road. (Parcel ID Nos. 07-21-28-0000- 00-

002 & 07-21-28-0000-00-023) [Ordinance No. 2433 meets the requirements for 

adoption having been advertised in The Apopka Chief on May 22, 2015.] The City Clerk read 

the title as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2433 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “CITY” PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (89.7 

+/- ACRES) AND “COUNTY” A-2 (5.4 +/- ACRES) TO “CITY” PLANNED 

UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD/R-3) AND OWNED BY APOPKA CLEAR 

LAKE INVESTMENTS, LLC; AND FROM “CITY” PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT (30.34 +\- ACRES)  TO “CITY” PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT  AND OWNED BY LUST GRANT, FOR CERTAIN 

REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED EAST OF S.R. 429, SOUTH 

OF PETERSON ROAD, AND NORTH OF LUST ROAD, COMPRISING 

125.74 +/- ACRES MORE OR LESS, PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO 

THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised this was a quasi-judicial hearing. Witnesses were sworn in by the 

City Clerk. 

 

Tom Sullivan, Esquire, representing the applicant, said they agree with staff’s 

recommendation and would appreciate Council’s continued support on the project. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak he 

closed the public hearing.  

 

Page 33



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on June 3, 2015, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 8 of 13  

Commissioner Velasquez said she had met previously with Mr. Moon earlier in the day 

regarding some questions she had.  She asked for clarification with regards to when the spine 

road would be constructed. She expressed a concern for public safety. 

 

Mr. Sullivan said there were two different agreements: the Development Agreement and the 

Transportation Agreement. He said the Transportation Agreement has some extensive 

obligations on the part of the developer in terms of constructing a spine road through the 

center of the project to provide connectivity. As part of their initial phase, which cannot go 

above 455 units, they will be required to construct Segment A of the spine road.  

 

Mr. Moon further clarified the road is broken into Segments A, B, C, and D. The 

development is in phases. There is no required sequence for the development.  

 

Commissioner Arrowsmith said he could agree with the development as such, but he could 

not agree with the long term ingress/egress of that total area. He said we needed something 

like Vick Road in this area for what is being called the spine road.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said he would rather see the road meander rather than being straight in 

order to calm and slow the traffic.  

 

Frank Bombeeck, applicant, said the City was currently working with property owners for 

the north access of the spine road. He advised Apopka Clear Lake Investments have secured 

enough entitlements and right, so both sides will be completely open to public safety from 

both sides.  

 

In response to Commissioner Velasquez inquiring if the developer would consider lowering 

the ceiling for construction of Segment A of the spine road from in excess of 455 units to 234 

units, the applicant, Ken Stoltenberg responded in the affirmative. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. 

 

Venus Griffith said she lives in Clear Lake Estates and when they moved there it was 

extremely quiet and they were the only gated community off of Binion Road. She expressed 

a concern regarding safety when pulling out on to Binion Road as well as the added traffic. 

 

No others wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing. 

 

Mr. Moon and City Attorney Shepard were in agreement to recommend having two motions: 

one to adopt the ordinance and a separate motion for the Development Agreement subject to 

the change presented that in every place for both the Transportation Agreement and the 

Development Agreement where the number is 455 be changed to 234.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velasquez and seconded by Commissioner Ruth to adopt 

Ordinance 2433 subject to the change of 455 units to 234 units. Motion carried by a 4/1 

vote with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, and Dean voting aye 

and Commissioner Arrowsmith voting nay. 

Page 34



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on June 3, 2015, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 9 of 13  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velasquez, and seconded by Commissioner Ruth to 

approve the Avian Point Development Agreement and authorize the Mayor to execute 

the agreement with the provision that everywhere the 455 units in the temporary 

density limitation be changed to 234 units. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor 

Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velasquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

The meeting recessed at 3:14 p.m. and reconvened at 3:18 p.m. 

 

6. ORDINANCE NO. 2434 SECOND READING & ADOPTION - CHANGE OF 

ZONING/MASTER PLAN & PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – Marden Ridge – 

owned by Emerson Point Associates, LLLP; Applicant MMI Development, Inc., c/o 

Michael E. Wright, Esq.; Engineer GAI Consultants, Inc., c/o Anthony Call, P.E. – from R-

3 (Residential) and C-1 (Commercial) to Planned Unit Development (R-3/C-1) for 

property located Between S.R. 451 and Marden Road, south of Ocoee Apopka Road, and 

north of the Apopka Expressway. (Parcel ID No. 17-21-28-0000-00-029) [Ordinance 

No. 2434 meets the requirements for adoption having been advertised in The Apopka 

Chief on May 22, 2015.] The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2434 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM R-3 (18.05 +/- ACRES) AND C-1 (6.43 +/- ACRES) 

TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD/R-3/C-1) (TOTAL 42.17 +/- 

ACRES) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED 

BETWEEN S.R. 451 AND MARDEN ROAD, SOUTH OF OCOEE 

APOPKA ROAD, AND NORTH OF THE APOPKA EXPRESSWAY (S.R. 

414), COMPRISING 42.17 +/- ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY 

EMERSON POINT ASSOCIATES, LLLP; PROVIDING FOR 

DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised this was a quasi-judicial hearing and the witnesses were sworn in 

by the City Clerk. 

Mayor Kilsheimer disclosed he has met with the developer and his representative on 

numerous occasions in relationship to a project that is not directly involved with this 

particular ordinance.  

David Moon, Planning Manager, advised that since the first meeting, staff has held 

discussions with the applicant and there is a need to add into the Development Standards as 

submitted to the Council under Sheet C 2.10 of the Master Plan and Development Standard 

creating a cross access easement between the commercial parcel on the south and the 

Page 35



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on June 3, 2015, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 10 of 13  

multifamily parcel to the north. Council’s motion should include the language presented.  

Michael Wright, applicant, said he was in support of adoption of the ordinance and they 

concur with staff’s recommendation for the additional condition.  

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to 

adopt Ordinance No. 2434 including the Development Standard Addition as presented. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

7. ORDINANCE NO. 2436 - FIRST READING - Amending the Election Date, Runoff Date, 

and Qualifying Dates associated with the 2016 City General Election. The City Clerk read the 

title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2436  

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, 

FLORIDA, AMENDING THE ELECTION DATE FOR THE 2016 CITY 

GENERAL ELECTION TO MARCH 15, 2016; CHANGING THE RUN-

OFF ELECTION DATE FOR THE 2016 CITY GENERAL ELECTION; 

DESIGNATING THE DATES FOR QUALIFYING FOR THE 2016 CITY 

GENERAL ELECTION; AUTHORIZING THE CANVASSING OF 

BALLOTS FOR THE 2016 CITY GENERAL ELECTION AS OUTLINED 

IN SECTION 34-41, APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES; PROVIDING 

FOR NOTICE TO THE SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS; PROVIDING 

FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2436 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

8. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-11 - Amending the Procurement Policy to increase the Local 

Business Preference from 1% to 3%. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

 

Page 36



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on June 3, 2015, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 11 of 13  

RESOLUTION NO.  2015-11 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, 

FLORIDA, AMENDING THE CITY ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY FOR 

PROCUREMENT, SECTION 107.3.1.2, POLICY, I. INCENTIVE FOR 

LOCAL BUSINESSES, III. PURCHASING GUIDELINES, IV. LEVELS OF 

REQUIRED AUTHORITY, AND V. COMPETITIVE PRICING; 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 

Commissioner Ruth said this was a great incentive to draw local businesses to conduct 

business with the City.  

Commissioner Arrowsmith said he was in favor of this, but Commissioner Ruth had asked 

for a report from staff showing some comparative numbers and he would like to see some 

comparisons of what the difference would have been.  

Pamela Barclay, Director of Finance, said they could table this and staff could do some 

analysis to bring back to Council.  

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth and seconded by Commissioner Arrowsmith to table 

Resolution 10215-11 for two weeks and have staff bring back some comparison figures 

on awarded bids. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

SITE APPROVALS 

 

1. MASS GRADING PLAN - Marden Ridge – owned by Emerson Point Associates, LLLP; 

Applicant MMI Development, Inc., c/o Michael E. Wright, Esq.; Engineer GAI 

Consultants, Inc., c/o Anthony Call, P.E., for property located between S.R. 451 and 

Marden Road, south of Ocoee Apopka Road, and north of the Apopka Expressway. 

(Parcel ID No. 17-21-28-0000-00-029) 

 

Jay Davoll, Community Development Director and City Engineer, said this is the Mass 

Grading Plan, Phase A for the Marden Ridge Apartments. This will be grading of the site in 

preparation of the apartments. They will be removing approximately 200,000 cubic yards of 

fill and their haul route is to go down Marden Road to Keene Road, then the expressway to 

their destination. Development Review Committee and the Planning Commission 

recommend approval.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith and seconded by Commissioner Dean to 

approve the Mass Grading Plan for Marden Ridge, Phase A. Motion carried 

unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, 

Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

Page 37



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on June 3, 2015, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 12 of 13  

 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS AND BIDS – No report. 

 

MAYOR'S REPORT – Mayor Kilsheimer reported we had a very successful weekend wherein 

the City hosted two tour groups in town for the IPW Convention. These groups were taken out 

on Lake Apopka for airboat rides and the wildlife drive. He said there was great cooperation 

from Paul Faircloth and Mosquito Creek, Steve White, owner of Porkies, St. Johns Water 

Management District (SJWMD), Florida Wildlife Commission, and Orange Audubon.  

 

Commissioner Arrowsmith left the meeting at 3:39 p.m. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer had a video played that was created by Robert Sargent, Public Information 

Officer, for the tour group on Lake Apopka.  

 

Commissioner Velazquez left the meeting at 3:41 p.m. and returned at 3:44 p.m. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer reported this video was posted on the City’s Facebook page and within 24 

hours had more than 1,100 views. He affirmed the SJWMD will be posting this video on their 

website.  

 

OLD BUSINESS 

COUNCIL – There was no old business from the Council. 

PUBLIC – There was no old business from the Public. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

COUNCIL – Commissioner Dean said the Commissioners had received a letter from Rod Love 

entitled Black Police Officers underrepresented on Florida streets.  He commended the citizens 

of Apopka for stepping up to offer training of our brave men and women that serve our 

community. He said he was appalled and embarrassed from the tragedies that have taken place 

throughout the country in minority communities, and the serious crime problem we have on the 

south side. He said the Orange County Sheriff’s office and Daytona Beach Police Department, as 

well as other law enforcement agencies have taken advantage of this expert that we have in our 

community.  He thanked Mr. Love for caring about our community and support of our police 

department.  

 

PUBLIC 

 

Freeda Hunter expressed concerns with regards to lack of street lights in the area she lives on 

Marvin C. Zanders Avenue, as well as some issues of a vacant property next to her with regards 

to break ins and what she said were zoning violations.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said this was a code enforcement complaint and asked her to meet with the 

City Administrator following the meeting so he could take her information and follow up directly 

with her and have code enforcement look into this matter. 

Page 38



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on June 3, 2015, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 13 of 13  

 

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further discussion, the meeting adjourned at 4:02 p.m. 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

Page 39



Page 40 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Approve the minutes of Administrative Bid Opening No. 2015-05 for Apopka Northwest 

Recreation Complex Canopy Shade Structures held on May 27, 2015, at 10:15 a.m. 

  

Page 40



Page 41



Page 42 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Authorize the issuance of a Peddler's Permit, to TNT Fireworks, to sell State approved 

fireworks at 1700 South Orange Blossom Trail, from June 24, 2015 until July 5, 2015.  

  

Page 42



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

     X     CONSENT AGENDA   MEETING OF:  June 17, 2015 

             PUBLIC HEARING    FROM: Administration 

             SPECIAL HEARING   EXHIBITS: Peddler Permit Application 

             OTHER:          
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

SUBJECT: PEDDLER PERMIT FOR TNT FIREWORKS. 

 

Request: AUTHORIZE ISSUANCE OF A PEDDLERS PERMIT FOR THE 

SALE OF STATE APPROVED SPARKLERS BY TNT FIREWORKS 

AT 1700 S. ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL (WALMART). 
 _______________________________________   ___________________________________ 

SUMMARY 

 

Claudia Romagoza, of TNT Fireworks, is requesting approval to sell State approved sparklers 

from June 24, 2015 through July 5, 2015, at 1700 S. Orange Blossom Trail (Walmart). 

 

The application has been reviewed and approved by the Fire, Police, and Community 

Development Departments. 

 

 

 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

N/A 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

Authorize issuance of a Peddlers Permit for the sale of State approved sparklers from June 24, 

2015 through July 5, 2015, by TNT Fireworks at the Walmart located at 1700 S. Orange Blossom 

Trail. 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)    HR Director   City Clerk  

City Administrator Irby   IT Director   Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Director   Police Chief  

Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Authorize the issuance of a Peddler's Permit, to TNT Fireworks, to sell State approved 

fireworks at 2302-2444 East Semoran Boulevard from June 24, 2015 until July 5, 2015. 

  

Page 64



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

     X     CONSENT AGENDA   MEETING OF:  June 17, 2015 

             PUBLIC HEARING    FROM: Administration 

             SPECIAL HEARING   EXHIBITS: Peddler Permit Application 

             OTHER:          
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

SUBJECT: PEDDLER PERMIT FOR TNT FIREWORKS. 

 

Request: AUTHORIZE ISSUANCE OF A PEDDLERS PERMIT FOR THE 

SALE OF STATE APPROVED SPARKLERS BY TNT FIREWORKS 

AT 2302-2444 E. SEMORAN BOULEVARD (PIEDMONT PLAZA). 
 _______________________________________   ___________________________________ 

SUMMARY 

 

Claudia Romagoza, of TNT Fireworks, is requesting approval to sell State approved sparklers 

from June 24, 2015 through July 5, 2015, at the Piedmont Plaza located at 2302-2444 E Semoran 

Boulevard. 

 

The application has been reviewed and approved by the Fire, Police, and Community 

Development Departments. 

 

 

 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

N/A 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

Authorize issuance of a Peddlers Permit for the sale of State approved sparklers from June 24, 

2015 through July 5, 2015, by TNT Fireworks at the Piedmont Plaza located at 2302-2444 E 

Semoran Boulevard. 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)    HR Director   City Clerk  

City Administrator Irby   IT Director   Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Director   Police Chief  

Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. Approve the first extension of the contracts for the consulting services for Geotechnical 

and Environmental Engineering Services with Ardaman and Associates, Inc. and 

Universal Engineering Sciences, for one year, at the same unit rate. 

  

Page 85



 

 

   CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA MEETING OF: June 17, 2015 

PUBLIC HEARING FROM:  Public Services 

SPECIAL HEARING EXHIBITS: 

OTHER:       
 

 

 

SUBJECT:     GEOTECHNICAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 

Request:          APPROVE AN EXTENSION OF THE CONTRACT FOR GEOTECHNICAL AND 

ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING SERVICES WITH ARDAMAN AND 

ASSOCIATES, INC. AND UNIVERSAL ENGINEERING SCIENCES FOR A PERIOD 

OF ONE YEAR 
 

 

SUMMARY: 

 

On April 16, 2014, the City Council awarded Geotechnical and Environmental Engineering Services Contract to 

Ardaman and Associates, Inc. and Universal Engineering Sciences, to provide the City with these services under 

a consulting services contract beginning June 1 of each term. 

 

The contract will be effective for one year and subject to renewal for two one-year extensions.  The services will 

be performed on an as needed basis.  This is the first extension of each contract. 

 
 

  

FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

N/A 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

Approve the first extension of the contracts for the consulting services for Geotechnical and Environmental 

Engineering Services with Ardaman and Associates, Inc. and Universal Engineering Sciences, for one year, at 

the same unit rate. 
 

DISTRIBUTION: 
Mayor Kilsheimer 
Commissioners  
City Administrator 
Community Development Director 

 
Finance Director 
Human Resources Director 
Information Technology Director 
Police Chief 

 
Public Services Director  

City Clerk  
Fire Chief  

 

Page 86



Page 87 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

6. Acknowledge notification of the 2015 Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) application to 

purchase software and hardware to provide the ability to retrieve data from the Event 

Data Recorder (EDR). 

  

Page 87



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

 X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  June 17, 2015 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:          Police Department 

     SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:      Notification Memo 

     OTHER:  _______________ 

  
 

SUBJECT: NOTIFICATION OF APPLICATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015/16 – EDWARD 

BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) PROGRAM 

 

 

Request: THE APOPKA POLICE DEPARTMENT IS FILING AN APPLICATION WITH 

THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE FOR FEDERAL ASSISTANCE FUNDING.  

THE FUNDING BEING REQUESTED IS FOR A GRANT TO PURCHASE 

SOFTWARE AND HARDWARE TO PROVIDE THE AGENCY WITH THE 

ABILITY TO RETRIEVE DATA FROM A VEHICLE’S EVENT DATA 

RECORDER (EDR) IN ORDER TO BETTER INVESTIGATE VEHICLE 

CRASHES, TO INCLUDE TRAFFIC HOMICIDE CRASHES. 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

Attached you will find a memo of intent to obtain funds in accordance with the grant application 

requirements.  The Apopka Police Department is required to notify the public and the City Commission 

of such intent.  The application is on file at the Police Department and should a member of the public 

wish to view the application, they may contact Captain Randall Fernandez. 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

N/A 

    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

Authorize the application for funding in accordance with the 2015 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice 

Assistance Grant (JAG) Program. 

 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 

Page 88



Page 89



Page 90 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. ORDINANCE NO. 2436 - SECOND READING AND ADOPTION - Amending the 

Election Date, Runoff Date, and Qualifying Dates associated with the 2016 City 

General Election.  

  

Page 90



 

 

      CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

  
CONSENT AGENDA MEETING OF: June 17, 2015 

PUBLIC HEARING FROM:  City Clerk 

SPECIAL HEARING EXHIBITS:  

OTHER:   

 

  
SUBJECT:   

 
 
  

Request: 
 
 

SUMMARY: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2436, moving the 2016 General Election to the third Tuesday in March. 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director 

Commissioners     HR Director   City Clerk 

City Administrator    IT Director   Fire Chief 

Community Development Director  Police Chief    

Ordinance No. 2436 
ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS 

ORDINANCE NO. 2436 – CHANGING THE ELECTION DATE, 

RUNOFF DATE, AND QUALIFYING DATES ASSOCIATED WITH 

THE 2016 CITY GENERAL ELECTION.  

SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2436 – 

CHANGING THE DATE FOR THE CITY GENERAL ELECTION TO 

MARCH 15, 2016. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Governor signed HB 7035 on March 19, 2015, changing the date for the Presidential 

Preference Primary to the third Tuesday in March of each presidential election year.  

 

The Supervisor of Elections has asked that the City change its dates to piggyback with the 

County for the election in the year that the Presidential Preference Primary takes place. 

 

The ordinance addresses changing the City’s General Election to March 15, 2016, changing 

the Runoff Election to April 12, 2016, and the qualifying dates for 2016 only. The elections in 

subsequent years will return to the second Tuesday in March, unless later amended by 

ordinance.  

 

This change will provide a reduction in cost to the City for the General Election. The City will 

not incur costs for equipment, poll workers, ballots, or absentee ballots. We would be 

responsible for advertising.  Should there be a requirement to hold a Runoff Election, the City 

would incur the usual costs. Funding will be budgeted in the FY 2015/16 Budget.  

Page 91



ORDINANCE NO. 2436  

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE ELECTION 

DATE FOR THE 2016 CITY GENERAL ELECTION TO 

MARCH 15, 2016; CHANGING THE RUN-OFF ELECTION 

DATE FOR THE 2016 CITY GENERAL ELECTION; 

DESIGNATING THE DATES FOR QUALIFYING FOR THE 

2016 CITY GENERAL ELECTION; AUTHORIZING THE 

CANVASSING OF BALLOTS FOR THE 2016 CITY 

GENERAL ELECTION AS OUTLINED IN SECTION 34-41, 

APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR 

NOTICE TO THE SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS; 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 166.021 Florida Statures, grants municipalities the proprietary 

powers to undertake all municipal functions; and 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 101.75 Florida Statutes authorizes municipalities to change the 

date of the municipal election when said election falls on the same date as the county election; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka adopted Ordinance No. 1222 on 

September 1, 1999 establishing the election date for the city general election to the second 

Tuesday of March; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Florida Legislature adopted a new Chapter 103.101 Florida Statutes, 

revising the date for the presidential preference primary to the third Tuesday in March of each 

presidential election year; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka desires to conduct the 2015 city 

general election in conjunction with the presidential preference primary. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1. That the 2016 City of Apopka General Election be held on March 15, 

2016. All general elections taking place following the 2015 Apopka General Election will remain 

as outlined in Section 34-36, Apopka Code of Ordinances. 

 

SECTION 2. That in the event a runoff election is required, said 2016 runoff election 

will be held on April 12, 2016, and thereafter conducted in accordance with Section 34-40, 

Apopka Code of Ordinances. 

 

SECTION 3. That qualifying for the 2016 City General Election will begin at twelve 

o’clock (12:00 p.m.) noon on Monday, December 14, 2015, and end at twelve o’clock (12:00 

p.m.) noon on Monday, December 21, 2015. 

 Page 92



ORDINANCE NO.  2436 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
 

 

SECTION 4. That the Orange County Canvassing Board is hereby authorized to canvass 

the City of Apopka ballots voted in the March 15, 2016 city general election and the runoff 

election, if necessary, in compliance with Section 34-41, Apopka Code of Ordinances. 

 

SECTION 5. That the term of office will remain as set out in Ordinance No. 1612, to 

expire at twelve o’clock (12:00 p.m.) noon on the fourth Tuesday of April. 

 

SECTION 6. The City Clerk is hereby directed to provide to the Orange County 

Supervisor of Elections, a certified copy of this ordinance within ten (10) days from the date of 

adoption. 

 

SECTION 7. SEVERABILITY. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this 

ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent 

jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, district and independent provision, and 

such holding shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining portion of this ordinance. 

 

SECTION 8. CONFLICTS.  All ordinances or parts thereof, in conflict with this 

ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION 9. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon 

its passage and adoption. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this _____ day of _______________, 2015. 

 

 

FIRST READING:  June 3, 2015   

 

SECOND READING 

   AND ADOPTION:   June 17, 2015  

 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF  

APOPKA, FLORIDA 
 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

 

Duly advertised for public hearing: June 5, 2015 

Page 93



Page 94



Page 95 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-11 - Amending the Procurement Policy to increase the Local 

Business Preference from 1% to 3%. 

  

Page 95



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

     CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  June 17, 2015   

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:         Administration  

     SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:    Resolution 2015-11  

 X  OTHER:  ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS 

  
 

SUBJECT: AMENDMENT OF THE PROCUREMENT POLICY, LOCAL BUSINESS 

INCENTIVE 

 

Request: REVIEW AND TAK E APPROPRIATE ACTION FOR RESOLUTION NO. 2015-11 

  
SUMMARY:  

 

Resolution No. 2015-11 was presented to City Council at the June 3, 2015 meeting following direction 

from Council at their April 15, 2015 meeting to investigate and prepare a proposal amending the local 

preference to increase the percentage to 3%. Council voted to table Resolution No. 2015-11 and bring it 

back on June 17, 2015 with staff preparing some comparison figures if the bids were to be awarded with 

the local vendor preference. 

 

The current Procurement Policy only allows for local business preference on sealed bids. Should it be 

Council’s desire, the policy was amended to also include all quotes. This change would be very difficult to 

quantify, as we currently do not monitor local businesses versus non-local businesses using the quotation 

process. 

 

Staff has compiled a spreadsheet utilizing the project bids awarded during 2014. The attached spreadsheet 

shows the estimated effects 1%, 2%, or 3% vendor preference could potentially cost the City.  

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

This has been prepared assuming all bids solicited had Apopka businesses bidding. The 1% preference 

would have resulted in $187,647 additional cost, while the 3% preference would have been $562,941. 

Hypothetically, staff believes it would be safe to say that a change in the vendor preference percentage 

could have possibly caused an additional $375,000 cost 

    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

Approve or Deny Resolution No. 2015-11. 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

 

Page 96



Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

Page 97



 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  2015-11 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE CITY 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY FOR PROCUREMENT, 

SECTION 107.3.1.2, POLICY, I. INCENTIVE FOR LOCAL 

BUSINESSES, III. PURCHASING GUIDELINES, IV. 

LEVELS OF REQUIRED AUTHORITY, AND V. 

COMPETITIVE PRICING; PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka recognizes the need for the City to 

adopt administrative policies; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is necessary that administrative policies be reviewed and amended from 

time to time. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, as follows: 

 

 

Section 1. That the Administrative Policies for Procurement, Section 107.3.1.2 

Policy, I. Incentive for Local Businesses, III. Purchasing Guidelines, IV. 

Levels of Required Authority, and V. Competitive Pricing, be amended as 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 

 

Section 2. That these changes shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

 

 

 

PASSED and ADOPTED  this            day of                           , 2015. 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF APOPKA    

 

 

__________________________________ 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

 

Page 98



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Administrative Policies: 

 

Section 107.3 – Procurement 

 

  

Page 99



1 
 

CITY OF APOPKA 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES 

 

107.3 TITLE 

 

Procurement 

 

107.3.1 PURPOSE 

 

To encourage competition among vendors and to provide guidance for the proper 

procurement of supplies and services for each department within the City. 

 

107.3.1.1 DISCUSSION 

 

The City recognizes fair and open competition is a basic tenet of public procurement.  

Open competition reduces the appearance and opportunity for favoritism and 

inspires public confidence. 

 

107.3.1.2 POLICY 
[underline indicates additions; strikethrough indicates deletions] 

 

I. Incentive for Local Businesses 

 

A. It is the City Council's desire to include provisions that will provide 

incentives to purchase goods from vendors located in the corporate 

limits of Apopka. Whenever competitive sealed bids or quotes are 

received, and one or more are submitted by a vendor located within 

the corporate limits of Apopka, if all things stated in such bids or 

quotes are equal with respect to price, quality, and service, the 

commodities shall .be purchased from the vendor located within the 

corporate limits. 

 

B. There may be a one three percent (1 3%) increase over the low bid or 

quote (if the low bidder is not located within the corporate limits of 

Apopka) allowed as an incentive to local businesses within the 

corporate limits of Apopka. Local businesses shall be defined as a 

business that has its main office within the corporate limits of Apopka, 

has a valid city occupational license, and pays property taxes directly 

or indirectly to the City. 

 

II. Legislative Authority 

 

The City Council may change, award, modify, or delete any provision in 

this policy and award a purchase order or contract to anyone or any firm it 

deems appropriate, at its sole discretion. 

Page 100



2 
 

III. Purchasing Guidelines 

 

The following are abbreviated, minimum guidelines. If a department has 

established more restrictive rules, the department rules will prevail. Should 

there be any conflict between these guidelines and the department's rules, 

these guidelines shall prevail. 

 

A. Any payment issued by the Finance Department must be initiated by 

either a purchase order or check request. As a general rule, all 

purchases/expenditures will require a purchase order. Check requests 

may be used for expenditures such as utility bills, telephone bills, 

refunds of fees, and travel expense payments. 

 

B. The proper support shall be included with each purchase order or 

check request, and the document(s) shall be approved by the proper 

level of authority. The support items required will vary depending 

upon the amount and/or type of purchase. Additionally, if competitive 

pricing is required, copies of the competitive pricing documents shall also 

be attached. Any exceptions to this policy must be authorized by the City 

Administrator Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) or his/her designee. 

 

C. If it is not practical to attach the required supporting documentation because 

of size or bulk, a copy of the documentation should be forwarded to the 

Finance Department and so noted on the purchase order or check request. 

Ideally, each purchase that has been processed should be able to survive 

review by an outside auditor without the need for additional 

documentation. 

 

D. If the vendor has not previously conducted business with the City, a new 

vendor file must be prepared. The Finance Department will be 

responsible for creating the new vendor file. 

 

E. Special instructions for payment processing should accompany the 

request for payment. If any documents are to accompany the check, those 

documents should be attached to the payment request.   ' 

 

F. If a payment for an open purchase order is requested and the amount 

requested is less than the purchase order amount, the Finance Department 

must be notified to close the purchase order when no further payments are 

to be made. 

 

G.  If a payment request exceeds the purchase order amount by 10% or 

$500, whichever amount is smaller, additional authorization will be 

required prior to payment. The person authorized to sign purchase 

orders is responsible for ensuring that the final purchase cost complies 

with all purchasing procedures as outlined in this policy. 

Page 101



3 
 

 

IV. Levels of Required Authority 

 

Depending upon the dollar amount and/or type of purchase, different levels of 

approval may be required prior to the actual purchase. 

 

A. City Council Approval 

 

Approval by the City Council is required of the following: 

 
1. Any service agreement with a total annual cost equal to or greater 

than $25,000. 
 

2. Any Capital purchase equal to or greater than $25,000. 

 

3. Any purchase, contract, or agreement equal to or greater than 
$25,000, except for: 

 
a. Progress payments on previously approved contracts or 

agreements. 
 

b. Inventory purchases for stock, purchased using competitive prices, 

and when no single unit price of an item is greater than $5,000. 

 
c. Emergency repairs necessary to alleviate a potential safety or 

environmental hazard or to restore public services. 
 

d. Field change orders falling within the Mayor's or his/her designee's 
authority. 

 

e. Settlements on insurance claims consistent with the approved 

insurance contract. 

 

B. Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) City Administrator 

 

The City Council has given the Chief Administrative Office (CAO) 

City Administrator or his/her designee blanket change order approval 

authority for individual change orders up to $10,000, with a cumulative 

value not to exceed $50,000 per any one project. 

 

C. Department Director 

 

The department director must authorize all purchases unless such 

authority has been delegated. If delegation has occurred, the Finance 

Department shall be notified. 

  

Page 102



4 
 

 

V. Competitive Pricing 

 

Competitive pricing is required for all purchases when the total purchase price 

will exceed $2,500. 

 

A. Written/Sealed Bid Competitive Quotations 

 
1. Total Purchase Price less than or equal to $2,500 - Do not 

require competitive pricing. 
 

2. Total Purchase Price greater than $2,500 and less than $25,000 - 

Requires three written quotations that must be attached to the 

purchase order. 

 

3. Total Purchase Price greater than or equal to $25,000 - Sealed bids 

are required. 

 

4. Services for engineers, architects, surveyors, and landscape architects 

in excess of $25,000 and/or construction costs in excess of $250,000 

shall be made utilizing Florida  Statute 287.055, the  Consultant's 

Competitive Negotiations Act. 

 

B. Exceptions to the competitive pricing requirement 

 
Each of these exceptions requires detailed written support be attached 
to the related purchase order. 

 

1. Emergency Repairs - repairs needed immediately to restore public 

services or to alleviate a safety or environmental hazard. A 

description of the emergency shall be attached to the purchase order 

or check request, with approval from the City Administrator CAO. 

 

2. Unidentifiable Repairs - repairs that could not be identified prior 

to the commencement of repair work. A description of the 
circumstances shall be attached to the purchase order or check 

request. 

 
3. Sole Source - products or services available from only one 

vendor. Documentation must be attached to the purchase order. The 
City Administrator CAO must give approval for the "Sole Source" 
designation. .The "Sole Source" designation will expire one year 
after approval and may be renewed upon submission of a new request 
with documentation. 

 

4. Evaluated Source - products or services may be purchased from a 

vendor without obtaining competitive prices when it has been 

Page 103



5 
 

determined that it is in the best interest of the City to use that vendor. 

Documentation must be attached clearly defining why it is in the 

best interest of the City not to obtain quotes with each purchase 

and/or why this vendor is to be used when other vendors may 

supply their products at a lesser price. Proven quality differences 

and proximity of supplier are some examples of the reasons why a 

vendor may be declared an "Evaluated Source." The City 

Administrator CAO must give approval for the "Evaluated Source" 

designation. The "Evaluated Source" designation will expire one 

year after approval and may be renewed upon submission of a new 

request with documentation. 

 

5. Federal, State, or other Governmental Contract - when using 

another governmental entity's existing contract, a copy of the relevant 

page(s) shall be attached, with the item highlighted. 

 

6. PRIDE - purchases from PRIDE do not require competitive quotes. 

 

7. Accounting, legal, permits, condemnation, and right-of-way services 

do not require competitive quotes. 

 

8. Used Vehicle Purchases - If the vehicle price is consistent with the 

NADA or "Black Book" price, no competitive pricing is required. 

A copy of the source data must be attached. 

 

VI. Purchase Orders 

 

A. A Purchase Order (PO) shall be issued for all purchases of goods or 

services in excess of $30.00 prior to the commitment to purchase the goods 

or services. The PO shall contain the quantity, description, price, 

authorization, and related information for the goods or services to be 

purchased. 

 

B. When preparing a PO, the purchase amount will determine the level of 

authority and the type of competitive pricing that may be required. 

 

C. The PO shall be generated by the department purchasing the goods or 

services. 

 
D. Support data for the PO shall be included with the PO and sent to the 

Finance Department. In all cases the invoice(s) used as backup for 
payment requests should be the original(s). 

 

E. Types of Purchase Orders. 

 

1. Regular Purchase Order - Used for a one-time purchase. Ideally, this 

type of PO will be created for one or more items purchased from one 

Page 104



6 
 

vendor, when the items will all be received at the same time. This  

PO will be processed for payment and then closed. Exceptions will 

be back orders or partial receipts, which should only be temporary. 

 
2. Blanket Purchase Order - Used for continuing goods, services or 

commodities where the fee or charge is known but the goods or 
services will be received over a known period of time. Examples 
of uses for a blanket PO are service contracts, maintenance contracts, 
etc. 

 

F. Encumbering and Paying a Purchase Order. 

 

1. The encumbrance of a purchase order creates an obligation for the 
City to purchase and pay for goods or services from a particular 
vendor. Accordingly, the affected accounts will reflect a reduction of 

the budget for the amount of the encumbrance, and affected 

accounts must have available budgeted funds to complete the 
purchase. 

 

VII. Check Requests 

 

Check requests are used to initiate payments to vendors, employees, or customers 

for items that do not require a purchase order. Some examples are utility bills, 

telephone bills, travel expenses, insurance payments, garnishments, fees 

collected in error, etc. Questions regarding the use of a check request as 

opposed to a purchase order should be referred to the Finance Department. 

Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. ORDINANCE NO. 2435 – FIRST READING – CHANGE OF ZONING/SMALL LOT 

OVERLAY DISTRICT MASTER PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – Silver 

Oaks – owned by Tallman Development Company, c/o Ed Hampden; engineer is 

Poulos & Bennett, LLC, c/o Marc Stehli, P.E. – From R-3 to R-3/Small Lot Overlay 

District, for property located north of East Keene Road, west of South Sheeler Avenue 

(2220 S. Sheeler Road). (Parcel ID Nos. 22-21-28-0000-00-078, 22-21-28-0000-00-

079, 22-21-28-0000-00-081, 22-21-28-0000-00-082, 22-21-28-0000-00-105, 22-21-28-

0000-00-108, 22-21-28-0000-00-109, 22-21-28-0000-00-114, 22-21-28-0000-00-117, 

22-21-28-0000-00-122) 

  

Page 118



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

____________________________________________________________    _________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING          DATE:   June 17, 2015 
          ANNEXATION           FROM:   Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL          EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
   X    OTHER: Ordinance             Vicinity Map 
                  Adjacent Zoning Map 
                  Adjacent Uses Map 
                  Ordinance No. 2435 
                  Exhibit A Master Site Plan 
                  Exhibit B Dev. Standards 
                  Exhibit C Site Data 
                  Exhibit D Parking Plan 
                  Exhibit E Park & Rec Plan 
                  Exhibit F Landscape Plan 
                  Exhibit G Archit. Renderings 
                  Exhibit H Small Lot Overlay Ord. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2435 - CHANGE OF ZONING/MASTER PLAN - SILVER OAK, 
OWNED BY TALLMAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, C/O ED HAMPDEN 
FROM R-3   (RESIDENTIAL) TO R-3/SMALL LOT OVERLAY DISTRICT 
(RESIDENTIAL) 

     
Request: FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2435 – CHANGE OF 

ZONING/MASTER PLAN – SILVER OAK, OWNED BY TALLMAN 
DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, C/O ED HAMPDEN FROM R-3 (RESIDENTIAL) 
TO R-3/SMALL LOT OVERLAY DISTRICT (RESIDENTIAL); PARCEL 
ID NUMBERS: 22-21-28-0000-00-078; -079, -081, -082, -105, -108, -109, -
114, -117, -122; AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING AND 
ADOPTION. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Tallman Development Company, c/o Ed Hampden 
 
ENGINEER:     Poulos & Bennett, LLC, c/o Marc Stehli, P.E. 
 
LOCATION:     North of East Keene Road, west of South Sheeler Avenue 
 
EXISTING USE:    Vacant nursery/4 mobile homes 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION:  Residential High Density (0 – 15 du/ac) 
 
ZONING:     R-3 (Residential) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Single Family Residential Subdivision per the Small Lot Overlay District 

Ordinance – 185 total single family lots 
 
PROPOSED ZONING:  R-3/Small Lot Overlay District (Residential) 
 
TRACT SIZE:    50.59 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE Proposed: 185 Units (single family lots) 
DEVELOPMENT:   Per FLUM:   758 Units (15 du\ac x 50.59 ac) 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer       Finance Director     Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)       HR Director      City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby      IT Director      Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Director       Police Chief   

 

Page 119



CITY COUNCIL - JUNE 17, 2015 

SILVER OAK – TALLMAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 

 

The subject parcels were annexed into the City of Apopka as follows:  

 

Parcel No(s). Ordnance No. Date Annexed 

22-21-28-0000-00-076 

22-21-28-0000-00-081 

22-21-28-0000-00-082 

22-21-28-0000-00-122 

706 December 30, 1991 

22-21-28-0000-00-105 751 December 16, 1992 

22-21-28-0000-00-109 1824 July 6, 2006 

22-21-28-0000-00-108 

22-21-28-0000-00-117 
2264 June 12, 2012 

22-21-28-0000-00-114 2351 March 19, 2014 

22-21-28-0000-00-078 2352 March 19, 2014 

 

The proposed zoning change is requested by the applicant.   Applicant requests the City to assign a Small Lot 

Overlay to the subject property to allow a mix of single family lots with a minimum width of 40 feet and 50 feet 

for a total of 185 residential homes.  Development will occur according to two development phases. 

 

Development Profile:  

Total Residential Units 185  

50’ width 100 54.1% 

40’ width 85 45.9% 

Phase 1 116  

50’ width 71 61.2% 

40’ width 45 48.8% 

Phase 2 69  

50’ width 26 37.6% 

40’ width 43 62.4% 

   

Open Space 15.18 ac 30%  

   

Park\Recreation 6.27 ac 
1.73 ac 
req. 

   

Parking 
Four per unit; two 
enclosed 

 71 overflow spaces 

Min. Livable Area use) 
Max.. 46 units have a min. 
1,500 sq. ft.; remaining to have 
minimum 1,700 s. ft.   

 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 
Page 120



CITY COUNCIL - JUNE 17, 2015 

SILVER OAK – TALLMAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

 

SMALL LOT OVERLAY DISTRICT COMPLIANCE:  The subject property meets the location criteria set 

forth within Section 3.04.05 of the Small Lot Overly Zoning District: 

 

1. The property must be assigned both a Residential High Future Land Use Designation and an R-3 zoning 

category.  (Sec. 3.04.05.1.a)  The subject property meets both these requirements, as demonstrated by 

the Future Land Use Map and the Zoning Map. 

 

2. A Small Lot Overlay District shall not be located within a half mile from another Small Lot Overlay 

District.  (Sec. 3.04.051.b)  Another established Small Lot Overlay District is not located within a half 

mile.   

 

3. Property comprising a Small Lot overlay District shall be contiguous and generally compact. (Sec. 

3.04.05.1.c)  The property meets these criteria as demonstrated by the proposed Master Plan. 

 

4. A boundary line of a Small Lot Overlay District must satisfy one (1) of the following criteria:  b. 

Located within a half mile from an entrance to a limited access highway, or abutting a limited access 

highway.  (Sec. 3.04.05.a)  The entrance to S.R. 414 at Keene Road is a few hundred feet from the 

subject property. 

 

The subject property complies with the development Section 3.04.04, Small Lot Overlay District, by meeting 

the development standards and design guidelines as demonstrated within the proposed Silver Oak Subdivision 

Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:    A School Capacity Enhancement Agreement has been approved by OCPS 

for all parcels. Location served by the following schools: Lakeville Elementary, Piedmont Lakes Middle 

School, and Wekiva High School.  No development activity shall occur on the subject property until the 

developer has obtained a school concurrency mitigation agreement or letter from OCPS. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: 
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board for a 

proposed rezoning or future land use amendment on property abutting unincorporated lands.  The City properly 

notified Orange County on April 10, 2015. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

May 12, 2015 – Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

June 17, 2015 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 1
st
 Reading 

July 1, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2
nd

 Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

April 24, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 

June 19, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad 

  

Page 121



CITY COUNCIL - JUNE 17, 2015 

SILVER OAK – TALLMAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 
WAIVER REQUESTS 
 
The applicant has requested three waivers from development standards established in the Land Development 
Code or the Small Lot Overlay District Ordinance.   Planning Commission and the Development Review 
Committee support one of the waiver requests but not the other two.   City Council should review and take 
action on each waiver separately before taking action on the request to assign the Small Lot Overlay District to 
the subject property. 
 
Waiver Request No. 1:  Section 2.02.07.H.3, LDC, requires a six foot high brick or masonry wall within a five-
foot-wide bufferyard adjacent to agricultural districts or uses.  Request:  Along the western and northern project 
line, applicant requests to install a six foot high vinyl fence.   

  
DRC does not object to the waiver request and the Planning Commission recommends approval 

of this waiver.   

  

Supporting Information:  While the property to the north and west is assigned an Agriculture 

zoning category and used for agriculture or horticultural nurseries, future use of these properties 

is anticipated to transition into single family residential homes.  
 
Waiver Request No. 2: Section 3.04.09(2), Small Lot Overlay Zoning District:  No swimming pools are allowed 
within a small lot.  A Small Lot is defined as a lot that has a width of less than 70 feet or a lot area less than 
7,000 square feet. Request:  The applicant requests to prohibit pools on lots less than 50 feet wide.  However, 
for lots 50 feet wide or greater, the applicant requests to limit pools to certain lots – Lots 1 – 21, 38 – 92, 149 -
172.  All other lots 50 feet wide or greater will be allowed to have pools if the waiver is approved. 

 

DRC staff does not support this request and the Planning Commission recommends denial of this 
waiver request. 
 
Supporting Information:   The application for the Small Lot Overlay Zoning District is the first 
request since City Council adopted the Small Lot Overlay ordinance was approved in December 
2014.  As City Council established this new policy, staff’s position is that a waiver is a policy 
decision that should be made by City Council.  The intent of the standard was to prevent screen 
room and pools from creating a clustered appearance within a small lot community.  Also, pools 
and associated screen rooms abutting public roads will create a clustered appearance for adjacent 
residents and road travelers.  Based on the applicant’s waiver request, lots less than 50 feet wide 
will still not be able to have swimming pools if the waiver is approved – only the fifty foot wide 
lots.  

 

Waiver Request No. 3: Section 3.04.09(3).  Metal, vinyl, or other similar materials shall not be used for patios, 
porticos or porches that extend beyond the wall of the primary residential structure. Materials used for these 
features shall be compatible with those of the primary residential structure.  Request:  Applicant requests to 
allow screened rooms for pools for Lots 1 - 21 and Lots 55 – 92.   

 

DRC does not support this request and the Planning Commission recommends denial of this 
waiver. 

Supporting Information:   The application for the Small Lot Overlay Zoning District is the first 
request since City Council adopted the Small Lot Overlay ordinance was approved in December 
2014.  As City Council established this new policy, staff’s position is that a waiver is a policy 
decision that should be made by City Council.  The intent of the standard was to prevent screen 
room and pools from creating a clustered appearance within a small lot community.  As part of 
the waiver request, the applicant provides design standards for the screen rooms and limits 
screen rooms to fifty foot lots that to not back up to a public road. 

Page 122



CITY COUNCIL - JUNE 17, 2015 

SILVER OAK – TALLMAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends: 

(1) Approval of the change in zoning from R-3 to R-3/Small Lot Overlay Zoning District for the property 
owned by Tallman Development Company, c/o Ed Hampden, subject to the findings of the Staff Report. 

(2) Waiver Requests:  

a. Section 2.02.07.H.3, LDC, requires a six foot high brick or masonry wall within a five-foot-wide 
bufferyard adjacent to agricultural districts or uses.  Request:  Along the western and northern project 
line, applicant requests to install a six foot high vinyl fence.  DRC does not object to the waiver 
request. 

b. Section 3.04.09(2), Small Lot Overlay Zoning District:  No swimming pools are allowed within a small 
lot.  A Small Lot is defined as a lot that has a width of less than 70 feet or a lot area less than 7,000 
square feet. Request:  The applicant requests to prohibit pools on lots less than 50 feet wide.  For lots 50 
feet wide or greater, the applicant requests to limit pools to certain lots – Lots 1 – 21, 38 – 92, 149 -172.  
DRC staff does not support this request. 

c. Section 3.04.09(3).  Metal, vinyl, or other similar materials shall not be used for patios, porticos or 
porches that extend beyond the wall of the primary residential structure. Materials used for these 
features shall be compatible with those of the primary residential structure.  Request:  Applicant requests 
to allow screened rooms for pools for Lots 1 - 21 and Lots 55 – 92.  DRC does not support this 
request. 

(3) Approval of the Silver Oak Subdivision Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan subject to City approval 
of a development agreement or other legal instrument to establish a special homeowner fee for maintenance 
of the on-street parking. 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on May 12, 2015, recommended: 
 
a. Approval (7-0) of Waiver Request: Section 2.02.07.H.3, LDC, requires a six foot high brick or masonry wall 

within a five-foot-wide bufferyard adjacent to agricultural districts or uses.  Request:  Along the western and 
northern project line, applicant requests to install a six foot high vinyl fence; 

b. Denial (5/2) of Waiver Request: Section 3.04.09(2), Small Lot Overlay Zoning District:  No swimming 
pools are allowed within a small lot.  A Small Lot is defined as a lot that has a width of less than 70 feet or a 
lot area less than 7,000 square feet. Request:  The applicant requests to prohibit pools on lots less than 50 
feet wide.  For lots 50 feet wide or greater, the applicant requests to limit pools to certain lots – Lots 1 – 21, 
38 – 92, 149 -172; 

c. Denial (5/2) of Waiver Request: Section 3.04.09(3).  Metal, vinyl, or other similar materials shall not be 
used for patios, porticos or porches that extend beyond the wall of the primary residential structure. 
Materials used for these features shall be compatible with those of the primary residential structure.  
Request:  Applicant requests to allow screened rooms for pools for Lots 1 -21 and Lots 55 – 92; 

d. Approval (7-0) of the Change of Zoning; and  

e. Approval (7-0) of the Silver Oak Subdivision Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan subject to City 
approval of a development agreement or other legal instrument to establish a special homeowner fee for 
maintenance of the on-street parking. 

Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2435 and the Silver Oak Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan 
and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on July 1, 2015. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
Page 123



CITY COUNCIL - JUNE 17, 2015 

SILVER OAK – TALLMAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Agricultural (1 du/5 ac) A-1 Active horticultural nursery; vacant lands 

East (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-2 Cobblefield single-family residential community 

South (County) Rural Settlement (1 du/1 ac) 
A-1 Manufactured homes; Apopka Expressway (S.R. 414) toll 

entrance; horticultural nursery 

West (City) Agricultural (1 du/5 ac) AG Horticultural nursery 

 

LAND USE &  

TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: A future land use designation of Residential High Density (HDR) has 

already been assigned to 41.4 acres of the 45.7 total acres comprising the 

Property.   

 

The Property has access to a Collector roadway (East Keene Road) as well 

as to Sheeler Road, designated a local road south of U.S. 441 to Keene 

Road.  Situated less than one hundred and fifty feet from the S.R. 414 toll 

way entrance, the Property allows easy access to a regional highway that 

leads to I-4, S.R. 429 and S.R. 451, and U.S. 441.  North and west of the 

Property, lands are predominantly used for horticultural nursery businesses 

or are vacant lands assigned an agriculture zoning.  Adjacent to the 

northwest corner are a few single family homes on large lots. To the east of 

Sheeler Road are two single family home residential neighborhoods -- 

Cobblefield and Sheeler Hills.  Stonewood Reserve, an unplatted residential 

community, is situated to the northeast of the Property. Located to the 

southeast is Orange County’s western regional water supply facility.  South 

of the Property the area is predominantly used for horticultural nursery 

businesses and the S.R. 414 tollway interchange at Keene Road. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE  

PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed R-3 (Multi-Family Residential) zoning is consistent with the 

City’s Residential High Density Future Land Use Designation, which allows 

up to 15 units per acre. Development plans shall not exceed the density 

allowed under the adopted future land use designation. 

 

R-3 DISTRICT  

REQUIREMENTS:  The R-3 zoning category allows single-family, duplex, and multi-family 

residential development.  Development requirements specific to each of 

these three development options are established within the Land 

Development Code.  The applicant has indicated an interest to pursue multi-

family development based on the residential market.  Minimum 

development standards for multi-family are listed for the R-3 zoning 

category:   

 

 

 

Page 124



CITY COUNCIL - JUNE 17, 2015 

SILVER OAK – TALLMAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

Minimum Living Sq. Ft.:   

 Apartment 750 sq. ft. 

 Condo/Townhomes 1,350 sq. ft. 

Minimum Site Area: One (1) Acres 

Minimum Low Width: 120 ft. 

Setbacks: Front 50 ft. between buildings 

 Rear 50 ft. between buildings 

 Side 20 ft. between buildings 

 Corner 25 ft. 

 

BUFFER-YARD  

REQUIREMENTS:  Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide a minimum six- (6') 

foot high brick, stone or decorative finished block wall erected inside a 

minimum ten (10) foot wide landscaped buffer-yard. Landscape materials 

shall be placed adjacent to the right-of-way, on the exterior of the buffer 

wall. 

 

ALLOWABLE USES:  Multi-family development up to 15 units per acre, duplex, or single family 

residential subject to Section 2.02.07 of the Land Development Code.  

  

Page 125



CITY COUNCIL - JUNE 17, 2015 

SILVER OAK – TALLMAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

Silver Oak 
Keene Road Apopka LLC/Nelson Apopka Ltd. 

50.59 +/- Acres 
Existing Maximum Allowable Development: 185 Units 

Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 758 Units 
Proposed Zoning Change: 

From: R-3 to R-3/Small Lot Overlay District (Residential) 

Parcel ID #s:  22-21-28-0000-00-078 22-21-28-0000-00-079 22-21-28-0000-00-081 

       22-21-28-0000-00-082 22-21-28-0000-00-105 22-21-28-0000-00-108 

       22-21-28-0000-00-109 22-21-28-0000-00-114 22-21-28-0000-00-117

       22-21-28-0000-00-122 

 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

  

Subject Property 

Page 126



CITY COUNCIL - JUNE 17, 2015 

SILVER OAK – TALLMAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

  

Page 127



CITY COUNCIL - JUNE 17, 2015 

SILVER OAK – TALLMAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 10 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

Page 128



ORDINANCE NO. 2435 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 
THE ZONING FROM R-3 (RESIDENTIAL) TO R-3/SMALL LOT 
OVERLAY DISTRICT (RESIDENTIAL) FOR CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF EAST KEENE ROAD, 
WEST OF SOUTH SHEELER AVENUE, COMPRISING 50.59 +/- ACRES 
MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY TALLMAN DEVELOPMENT 
COMPANY; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best 
interest of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications 
within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 
identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed R-3/Small Lot Overlay District zoning has been found to be 
consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and with the City of Apopka Land 
Development Code. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Small Lot Overly District establishes additional regulatory standards 
that are superimposed upon and supersede the underlying zoning category. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I. That the zoning classification of the following described property be 
designated as R-3/Small Lot Overlay District, as defined in the Apopka Land Development 
Code, and subject to the following zoning provisions:  
 
 SMALL LOT OVERLAY DISTRICT COMPLIANCE:  The subject property meets 
the location criteria set forth within Section 3.04.05 of the Small Lot Overly Zoning District: 
 

1. The property must be assigned both a Residential High Future Land use Designation and 
an R-3 zoning category.  (Sec. 3.04.05.1.a)  The subject property meets both these 
requirements, as demonstrated by the Future Land Use Map and the Zoning Map. 

 
2. A Small Lot Overlay District shall not be located within a half mile from another Small 

Lot Overlay District.  (Sec. 3.04.051.b)  Another established Small Lot Overlay District 
is not located within a half mile.   

 
3. Property comprising a Small Lot overlay District shall be contiguous and generally 

compact. (Sec. 3.04.05.1.c)  The property meets these criteria as demonstrated by the 
proposed Master Plan. 

 
4. A boundary line of a Small Lot Overlay District must satisfy one (1) of the following 

criteria:  b. Located within a half mile from an entrance to a limited access highway, or 
abutting a limited access highway.  (Sec. 3.04.05.a)  The entrance to S.R. 414 at Keene 
Road is a few hundred feet from the subject property. 

 

Page 129



ORDINANCE NO. 2435 

PAGE 2 

 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being 
situated in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby R-3/Small Lot Overlay District, as defined in 
the Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 Legal Description: 
 

The Southeast ¼ of the Southwest ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of Section 22, Township 
21 South, Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida, LESS the road right-of-way on 
the South, LESS that portion taken by the Order of Taking recorded in Official 
Records Book 8997, page 1835, Public Records of Orange County, Florida, 
Parcel I.D. # 22-21-28-0000-00-078, 3.5 +/- acres; and 
 
The Northeast ¼ of the Southwest ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of Section 22, Township 
21 South, Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida. 
Parcel ID No.: 22-21-28-0000-00-079, 9.96 +/- acres; and 

 
The North ½ of the Southeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of Section 22, Township 21 
South, Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida, LESS AND EXCEPT that portion 
conveyed to Orange County, Florida, in that certain Quit-Claim Deed recorded 
April 22, 1998 in Official Records Book 5464, Page 880, Public Records of 
Orange County, Florida LESS AND EXCEPT right of way for S. Sheeler Avenue 
on the East. Parcel ID No. 22-21-28-0000-00-081, 19.43 +/- acres; and 
 
The South 495 feet of the East 627 feet of the Southeast ¼ of the Northeast ¼ of 
the Southeast ¼ of Section 22, Township 21 South, Range 28 East, Orange 
County, Florida, LESS AND EXCEPT right of way for S. Sheeler Avenue on the 
East. Parcel ID No.: 22-21-28-0000-00-082, 7.09 +/- acres; and 
 
The West 290 feet of the East 320 feet of the South ½ of the Southeast ¼ of the 
Southeast ¼ of Section 22, Township 21 South, Range 28 East, LESS the South 
560 feet, ALSO the North 100 feet of the South 560 feet of the West 290 feet of 
the East 320 feet of the South ½ of the Southeast ¼ of Section 22, Township 
21 South, Range 28 East, all in Orange County, Florida, LESS AND EXCEPT 
right of way for S. Sheeler Avenue on the East. Parcel ID No.: 22-21-28-0000-00-
105, 1.31 +/- acres; and 
 
The West 100 feet of the South ½ of the Southeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼ LESS the 
South 30 feet for right of way, in Section 22, Township 21 South, Range 28 East, 
Orange County, Florida. Parcel ID No.: 22-21-28-0000-00-108, 2.89 +/- acres; 
and  
 
The North 130 feet of the South 160 feet of the West 290 feet of the East 320 feet 
of the Southeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of Section 22, Township 21 South, Range 
28 East, Orange County, Florida, LESS AND EXCEPT rights of way of Keene 
Road on the South and S. Sheeler Road on the East. Parcel ID No.: 22-21-28-
0000-00-109, 0.86 +/- acre; and 
 
The West 100 feet of the East 1020 feet of the South ½ of the Southeast ¼ of the 
Southeast ¼ (LESS the South 30 feet for road), of Section 22, Township 21 
South, Range 28 East, recorded in Book 2760, Page 1323 and Book 4266, Page 
3188 of the Public Records of Orange County, Florida. Parcel I.D. # 22-21-28-
0000-00-114, 1.44 +/- acres; and 
 

Page 130



ORDINANCE NO. 2435 

PAGE 3 

 

The West 200 feet of the East 1,220 feet of the South ½ of the Southeast ¼ of the 
Southeast ¼ LESS the South 30 feet thereon), in Section 22, Township 21 South, 
Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida. Parcel ID No.: 22-21-28-0000-00-117, 
Containing 1.44 +/- Acres; and   
 
 
The West 200 feet of the East 520 feet of the South ½ of the Southeast ¼ of the 
Southeast ¼ of Section 22, Township 21 South, Range 28 East, Orange County, 
Florida, LESS AND EXCEPT right of way for Keene Road on the South. Parcel 
ID No.: 22-21-28-0000-00-122, 2.89 +/- acres. 
 
Combined total acreage: 50.59 acres (+/-) 
 

 Section III.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of 
the City of Apopka, Florida. 
 
 Section IV.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 
hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of 
Apopka, Florida, to include said designation.  The Community Development Director shall not 
accept an application for a development plan until such time the property owner addresses school 
capacity enhancement review with Orange County Public Schools. 
 
 Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 
proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 
validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this 
ordinance. 
 
 
 Section VI.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed.   
 
 Section VII.  That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately. 
 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  April 24, 2015 
     June 19, 2015 

READ FIRST TIME:  June 17, 2015 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
July 1, 2015 

Page 131



 

  

EXHIBIT “A” 

Page 132



  

Page 133



 

 

Page 134



1 
 

                     SILVER OAK MASTER SITE PLAN DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

 

 

A.  Design Standards 

 

1. LOT CRITERIA: 

 

Description Single-Family Detached 

(Rear Loaded) 

Single-Family Detached 

(Front Loaded) 

Lot Setbacks 
(1)

 

Front Porch 10’ 15’
(2)

 

Front 15’ 20’ 

Rear 20’ 20’ 

Side 5’ 5’ 

Side Corner 15’ 20’ 

Garage 22’ 30’ 

Accessory Structure Rear 5’ 5’ 

Lot Dimensions 

Min. Average Lot Area 4,600 SF 5,750 SF 

Min. Lot Width 40’ 50’ 
(3)

 

Min. Lot Depth 115’ 115’ 

Max. Lot Coverage 75% 75% 

Max. Building Height 35’/2 Stories 35’/2 Stories 

Min. Living Area 1500 SF
(4)

 1700 SF
(4)

 

(1) See Sheet “A-1” for depiction of conceptual individual site plans. 

(2) Front porch setback as allowed per City of Apopka Development design Guidelines 3.2.1. 

(3) Minimum lot width may be reduced to 40’ around curves so long as lot width at the primary 

structure setback is 50’ minimum. 

(4) 1,500 SF minimum allowed on a maximum of (46) units of the (85) total Single-Family 

Detached (Rear Loaded) units (Lots 22 – 37, 93-148, 173-185). 1700 SF minimum required on 

a minimum of (139) units of the (185) total units within the community (75% required per 

Section 3.04.08 of Small Lot Overlay District Ordinance). 

 

B.  Architectural, Buildings, and Accessory Structures 

1. Architectural design shall meet the intent of City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines and 

Section 3.04.08 of the Small Lot Overlay District Ordinance or unless otherwise stated. 

2. All lots shall have detached single family homes. 

3. All lots shall have attached 2 car garages. 

4. Face of wall containing a front entry garage shall not extend past the front building wall. Setback to 

wall shall be 30' minimum from front property line. 

5. Number of bedroom per individual home = (2) minimum - (4) maximum 

6. AC condenser units & similar equipment shall be placed in the rear yard area. Units & similar 

equipment shall not be placed inside the side yard building setback. Units shall be screened from side 

streets with landscaping or opaque fencing. See site plans on sheet "A-1". 

7. Trash recycle bin pads (minimum 6'x4') shall be provided within the rear yard & adjacent to 

driveways for lots 22 – 37, 93-148, 173-185. See site plans on sht. "A-1" 

8. Storage sheds or similar storage facilities shall not be allowed. 

Page 135



2 
 

9. Swimming pools shall be allowed on Single-Family Detached (Front Loaded-50’ wide minimum) 

Lots 1-21, 38-92, & 149-172.            

a) Swimming Pools must be in-ground type. Above Ground Pools are prohibited. 

b) Swimming pools and decks are prohibited from projecting beyond the side wall facade. 

10. Screen enclosures over swimming pools and their respective deck area with non-metal or non-vinyl 

roofs shall be allowed on Single-Family Detached (Front Loaded – 50’ wide minimum) Lots 1-21 & 

55-92 only. Swimming pool screen enclosures are prohibited on lots 38-54 (lots adjacent Sheeler 

Ave.) & 161-173 (back to back lots).         

a) Screen enclosures over swimming pools and their respective deck area shall be single story with 

dome or angled roofs. Enclosure structural members shall be bronze. Screening shall be dark 

mesh. Solid opaque or clear panels on the walls or roofs are prohibited. 

b) Screen enclosures with metal, vinyl, or screen mesh roofs over non-swimming pool decks are 

prohibited. 

11. Mail delivery for all lots shall occur at mail kiosk with cluster mailbox units. Mail kiosk shall 

provide covered roof area for protection from inclement weather. See sheet "A-3" for street 

elevation. 

12. Architectural Design Standards: 

a) Spanish, Tuscan, or Craftsman architectural styles or themes shall be applied to houses, 

community buildings, and mail kiosk. Architectural Style elements shall be applied to front 

façade only. See sheet “A-2” for conceptual front elevations.  Modification or replacement of the 

exterior elevations on Sheet “A-2” can be approved by the Community Development Director if 

such changes represent equivalent architectural value. Substantial deviations from architectural 

rendering must be approved by City Council. 

b) Side wall facades along side yard streets at lots 12, 22, 38, 93, 99, 100, 106, 107, 113, 114, 120, 

121, 127, 128, 134, 135, 141, 142, 148, 149, 161, 172, 173, and 178 and along rear elevations at 

lots 38 – 54 shall have additional embellished window grid patterns and window banding & trim 

to match the front elevation windows. 

c) Front facade materials such as cultured stone veneer, stucco, & fiber cement siding shall be 

utilized to be consistent with the applicable Architectural Style. 

d) Minimum roof pitch shall be 5 / 12. 

e) 30 year asphalt shingle shall be installed on all roofs. 3-tab shingles are prohibited. Single 

shingle color shall be used for uniformity throughout the community. 

f) Aluminum fascia and soffit shall be standard for all houses. Single Fascia and soffit color shall 

be used for uniformity throughout the community. 

g) Window Banding/trim and front door shall be painted an accent color. 

h) Pavers shall be installed at front yard driveways, lead walks, porches, and porticoes. 

13. Front Building Entrance Elevation Design Standards: 

a) Front building entrance shall feature a minimum 5' deep (per Section 3.04.08(4) of Small Lot 

Overlay District Ordinance) porch or portico flush or projecting beyond front wall or similar 

feature. Porch widths shall be minimum of 30% of the front façade overall width. 

b) Front porches & porticos at grade level. 

c) Model plan type shall not be constructed adjacent to the same model plan type without a 

different elevation style type. 

d) Elevation style types of the same story height shall not be constructed adjacent to the same 

elevation style type. The same elevation style type of varying story heights shall not be 

constructed on three (3) consecutive lots. 

e) Specific elevation style types shall have similar wall finishes, window grid patterns, window 

banding & trim, roof lines and slopes, etc. Applied to each lot width model plan type front 

elevations. 

Page 136



3 
 

f) Identical exterior paint schemes shall not be applied on adjacent lots. 

g) Modification or replacement of the exterior elevation on Sheet “A-2” can be approved by the 

Community Development Director if such changes represent equivalent architectural value. 

Substantial deviations from architectural rendering must be approved by City Council. 

14. Rear Elevation Facing "Sheeler Street" Design Standards:  

a) Applicable to lots 38 thru 54 only. 

b) See Exterior Elevations on sheet “A-2”. 

c) Single story lanais shall be required on any two story home to eliminate box on box appearance. 

d) Single story homes shall have gable ends at lanai's or jogs in rear wall façade to eliminate 

continuous horizontal fascia line and single hip roof plane.  

e) Large expanses of solid wall shall be avoided thru use of windows, wall features, or wall / roof 

jogs. 

f) Window grid patterns and window banding & trim shall match front elevation windows. 

g) Window style types of the same story height shall not be constructed adjacent to the same 

elevation style type. The same elevation style type of varying story heights shall not be 

constructed on three (3) consecutive lots. 

h) Identical exterior paint schemes shall not be applied on adjacent lots. 

i) Modification or replacement of the exterior elevation on Sheet “A-3” can be approved by the 

Community Development Director if such changes represent equivalent architectural value. 

Substantial deviations from architectural rendering must be approved by City Council. 

15. Mail Kiosk Elevation Design Standards: 

a) Elevation shall be compatible with the architectural elevation styles of the homes & mail kiosk 

within the community. See Sheet “A-3”. 

b) Modification or replacement of the exterior elevation on Sheet “A-3” can be approved by the 

Community Development Director if such changes represent equivalent architectural value. 

Substantial deviations from architectural rendering must be approved by City Council. 

16. Community Building Elevation Design Standards: 

a) Elevation shall be compatible with the architectural elevation styles of the homes & mail kiosk 

within the community. See Sheet “A-3”. 

b) Modification or replacement of the exterior elevation on Sheet “A-3” can be approved by the 

Community Development Director if such changes represent equivalent architectural value. 

Substantial deviations from architectural rendering must be approved by City Council. 

17. Individual Lot Front & Rear Yard Fencing Standards: 

a) Community Perimeter Fencing not included. See applicable Landscape Plan Sheet L201-L205. 

b) See sheet “A-1” for conceptual fencing plans. 

c) Fencing is prohibited in front yards. 

d) Fencing at rear yards of rear alley loaded lots (Lots 22 – 37, 93-148, 173-185) shall be 

aluminum wrought iron grate style fencing. See sheet “A-1” for illustration. 

e) Fencing at rear yards of rear alley loaded lots (Lots 22 – 37, 93-148, 173-185) shall be setback at 

least two feet from the alley and driveway. See sheet “A-1” for illustration. 

f) Fencing at rear yards of 50' wide or garage front loaded lots shall be tan vinyl opaque style 

fencing. See sheet “A-1” for illustration. 

g) Maximum height = 5'-0" above final grade. No fence shall exceed the height of an abutting 

common area wall. 

h) Rear yard fences shall not project more than 5' beyond rear side wall building corner. 

 

 

 

 

Page 137



4 
 

C.   Utilities and Infrastructure 

 

1. Water service shall be provided by the City of Apopka.  The water system shall be designed to city 

standards. 

2. Reclaim water service shall be provided by the City of Apopka.  The reclaim water system shall be 

designed to city standards. 

3. Storm water management system shall be designed to comply with the requirements of the City of 

Apopka and St. Johns River Water Management District for projects without a positive outfall. 

4. A final drainage report and soils report will be submitted with final development plans 

5. Sanitary service shall be provided by the City of Apopka. The sanitary system shall be designed to 

city standards.  

6.  Utility easements shall be dedicated to the City of Apopka. 

7. Drainage easements to be dedicated to the home owners association unless otherwise accepted by 

the City of Apopka. 

8. All storm water and utility pipes may be moved to save existing trees in the right-of-way.  Any 

change in the location of these pipes will be shown on the final engineering plans. 

9. On-site streets are to be constructed per City of Apopka standards. 

10. A signage plan will be provided with the final development plan submittal. 

11. Stabilized access roadways and fire hydrants must be in place before building construction may 

begin. 

12. Solid waste collection and public safety (police and fire) provided by the City of Apopka. 

13. The internal street right-of-way is to be Public.  

14.      A five (5) foot wide sidewalks to be constructed adjacent to internal roads throughout the entire 

project in compliance with the City of Apopka Land Development Code.  Sidewalk alignment 

may be adjusted at final development plan to preserve existing trees. 

15. A five-foot wide sidewalk shall be constructed within the right-of-way along Sheeler Road in front 

of Parcel ID’s 22-21-28-0000-00-140, 194 and 111. 

16. Right-of-way dedication along E. Keene Road and Sheeler Avenue shall be as depicted on sheet 

C2.00 or the Silver Oak Master Plan. 

17. Silver Oaks HOA shall not object to Parcel ID’s 22-21-28-0000-00-140, 194 and 111 located 

along Sheeler Road to accessing Bonsai Street.  These parcels shall be allowed to become part of 

the Silver Oaks Community and HOA.  If such abutting parcels access Bonsai Street, the 

development of these parcels shall occur consistent with the development design standards set 

forth in the Silver Oaks PUD Master Plan. 

18. Lot parking shall be provided at a rate of 4 parking spaces per dwelling unit. Provided parking 

shall at a minimum contain 2 parking spaces within the driveway and 2 parking spaces within an 

enclosed garage. 

19. The development shall provide a minimum of 50 on-street parallel parking spaces. 

20. Garages shall be access from the adjacent public right-of-way at the front of the lot for lots 1-21, 

38-92 and 149-172. 

21. Garages shall be accessed from the adjacent alley tract at the rear of the lot for lots 22-37, 93-148 

and 173-185. 

22. All alley tracts shall be proposed as one-way travel lanes. 

23. Power service within the development shall be underground. No overhead service will be allowed. 

24. Vehicular, Pedestrian and Accent lighting shall substantially conform the Section 3.10 – Lighting 

of the City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines. 

Page 138



5 
 

25. Mobility Standards - Based upon the development’s daily trip generation of 1,859 vehicles, the 

provision of twelve (12) mobility standards is required. The development is proposing the 

following mobility standards to fulfill this requirement: 

 

i. Sheeler Road left turn lane 

ii. Keene Road left turn lane 

iii. Sheeler Road/Keene Road corner right-of-way dedication 

iv. Sheeler Road right-of-way dedication 

v. Construct approximately 300 LF sidewalk on Sheeler across the vacant outparcel at 

Sheeler Road and Keene Road 

vi. Construct approximately 150 LF sidewalk west side of Sheeler from La Gran Via 

Lane to Sheeler Oaks Drive 

vii. Provide a pedestrian gate from cul-de-sac/dog park to Keene Road sidewalk 

viii. Provide crosswalk striping across Sheeler Hills Drive 

ix. Provide crosswalk striping across Stanford Drive 

x. Provide additional bike parking within the development (1 or more credits) 

xi. Provide pedestrian seating at project entrances (1 or more credits) 

xii. HOA to promote ride sharing program 

 

D.  Recreation and Open Space 

 

1. Required project open space shall be a minimum of 30% of the developed site area in accordance 

with City of Apopka Small Lot Overlay Zoning District Section 3.04.00(4)(A) and LDC Section 

2.02.18(D)(19). 

2. Required project recreation shall be provided at a rate of 3.6 acres per 1,000 population with 2.6 

population per dwelling unit. 

3. Recreation Tract “PR-1” shall be an approximate 1.89 acre Community Center and shall be 

completed per note #6.  A specific park site plan and amenities/equipment shall be provided with 

the Final Development Plan.  Community Center area amenities shall include a single story 

Community Building, Swimming Pool and Deck, and Mail Kiosk at a minimum.  The Community 

Building shall be minimum of 2500 SF containing a multi-purpose room, kitchenette (no gas 

appliances), storage room, restroom facilities for the building and pool, screened lanai area, and 

unscreened lanai area. The swimming pool and deck area shall be a minimum of 3200 SF and 

water area of a minimum of 1400 sf. 

4.   Recreation Tract “PR-2” shall be an approximate 0.60 acre Dog Park and shall be completed 

concurrent with Phase 2 of the development.  A specific park site plan and amenities/equipment 

shall be provided with the Final Development Plan.  Dog park area shall be enclosed and 

amenities shall include at a minimum one (1) Dog Waste Bag & Disposal Station, one (1) dog 

drinking fountain, six (6) seating benches and a walkway. 

5. Recreation Tracts 3-6 will incorporate pedestrian circulation, benches, and open play areas.  

Specific park site plans and amenities/equipment shall be provided with the Final Development 

Plan.   

6. The phasing of all Open Space and Parks and Recreation tracts shall be consistent with that 

depicted on the Park Tracts and Open Space Tracts tables as shown on the Site Data sheet C2.02. 

Completion of Phase 1-Parks and Recreation facilities shall be done by the issuance of the fiftieth 

(50) Certificate of Occupancy within Phase 1 houses. Completion of Phase 2 - Parks and 

Recreation facilities shall be done by the issuance of the fiftieth (50) Certificate of Occupancy 

within Phase 2 houses. 

 

Page 139



6 
 

E.  Buffers and Landscaping 

 

1. A fifteen (15) foot buffer tract for perimeter wall and landscaping will be provided along the 

Sheeler Ave, Keene Road, and Stanford Road frontages.  These tracts shall be dedicated to and 

maintained by the HOA.  The design of these buffer tracts shall generally follow the landscape 

design appearing on sheets L100 to L101 and L201 to L206 of the Master Plan/Preliminary 

Development Plan.   A six (6’) foot high wall or fence is provided in these tracts to provide 

buffering from the adjacent roadways.  

2.  A five (5) foot wide buffer tract for perimeter fence and landscaping will be provided on the 

northern and western property line.  These tracts shall be dedicated to and maintained by the HOA.  

The design of this buffer shall generally follow the landscape design appearing on sheets L100 to 

L101 and L201 to L206 of the Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan. A six (6’) foot high 

vinyl fence is provided in these tracts to buffer the adjacent agriculture-zoned properties. 

3.  Entrance feature and community sign will be provided with final development plans.   

4. Final landscape plans for the buffer areas along East Keene Road & South Sheeler Avenue will be 

provided with the final development plans. 

5. Tree Planting Conditions.  Minimum of two new trees shall be planted per 50’ wide residential lot 

and a minimum of one new tree shall be planted per 40’ wide residential lot.  The new trees shall 

be a minimum of 3.5 inches DBH at the time of planting and shall count toward the overall 

number of required tree replacement inches, if any. 

6.  Tree Protection Plan - The Final Development Plan shall include tree protection techniques to 

prevent harm to any trees designate to be preserved or encroachment into protected natural areas, 

including but not limited to tree barricades, silt fencing or other similar techniques accepted by the 

City Engineer.    

 

F.  Maintenance and Plat  

 

1.   Homeowners association will maintain all common areas, alley tracts, fences\walls, and 

landscaping within the front and corner yards of all lots.  

2. The final development plan shall include the plat document, and the plat shall be in final form. 

3. The City of Apopka shall be responsible for maintenance of streets, on-street parallel parking 

spaces, and street lighting and stormwater collection systems within the public rights-of-way 

within the Silver Oak Subdivision. A special assessment may be required within the developer's 

agreement for the additional maintenance associated with this parking arrangement within the 

public right of way within the Silver Oak development. 

 

G.  Wetlands and Environmental 

 

1. There are no wetlands or environmentally sensitive areas on the site.   

2. There are no 100-year flood plain areas within the site. 

3. An erosion protection plan will be submitted with final development plans.  

4. Tree removal, tree replacement, and landscaping shall be in conformance with Article V of the 

City of Apopka Land Development Code.   

5.  Individual lot arbor/clearing permit is required prior to clearing or grading of any lot or issuance of 

building permit. Placement of the house shall preserve existing trees to the greatest extent 

practical.  Plot plan for each lot shall illustrate tree locations as presented within the PUD Master 

Plan\Preliminary Development Plan.  

 

 

Page 140



7 
 

H.  Development Condition Continuity.   

  

The PUD Development Standards shall be printed within the PUD Master Plan and the Final 

Development Plan. 

 

I.  Signage.    

 

Signage shall comply with the City of Apopka Land Development Code and City of Apopka 

Development Design Guidelines. 

 

J.  Lighting.    

 

Lighting shall comply with the City of Apopka’s City Ordinance No. 2069.  Street and parking 

area or pedestrian path light poles shall be decorative type and details provided with the Final 

Development Plan. 

 

K.  Garbage Pickup.    

 

1. Front loaded single family units to be picked up at the adjacent front right-of-way. 

2. Rear loaded single family units to be picked up at the adjacent rear alley tract. 

 

L.  Miscellaneous.    

 

1. Any existing septic tanks or wells shall be properly abandoned prior to earthwork or construction. 

Permits shall be applied for and issued by the appropriate agencies. 

2. All acreages are subject to change with final engineering and final plat review and approval. 

3. Outdoor storage areas (boats, trailers, recreational vehicles, etc.) are not provided within the 

development and will be prohibited through the HOA documents. 

4. All lots with rear alley access shall have uniform address numbers on the backside of the residence 

and the front of the building facing common open space areas. 

 

Page 141



          EXHIBIT “B” 
 
 
Section 3.12., Mailbox Kiosk Design; Residential Design Standards, Development Design 
Guideline  
 
Design and appearance of a mailbox kiosk are compatible with the architectural theme for homes 
and community buildings in the residential community.  Mailbox kiosks are covered by a shelter 
structure sufficient to protect the patron, mail, and delivery personnel from inclement weather.  
Acceptable and Undesirable design examples appear below. 
 
A.  Mailbox Kiosk (aka Cluster Mailbox Shelters) 
 

1.  Acceptable Design Examples 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.  Undesirable Design Examples 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 142



 

EXHIBIT “C” 

Page 143



 

EXHIBIT “D” 

Page 144



 

 EXHIBIT “E” 

Page 145



  

EXHIBIT “F” 

Page 146



  

Page 147



  

Page 148



  

Page 149



 

  

Page 150



 

Page 151



 

 

  EXHIBIT “G” 

Page 152



 

  

Page 153



 

Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT – Rock Springs Estates, owned by Rock Springs 

Estates; applicant is Pulte Group, c/o Doug Hoffman, P.E.; engineering firm is Donald 

W. McIntosh Associates, Inc., c/o John T. Townsend, P.E., located south of West 

Lester Road, east of Vick Road. (Parcel ID Nos. 3-20-28-0000-00-015, 33-20-28-0000-

00-118, 33-20-28-0000-00-003)  

  

Page 165



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

     X     PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  June 17, 2015 

             SPECIAL REPORTS      FROM: Community Development 

             PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

     X     OTHER: Final Development Plan      Site Plan 

           Landscape Plans 

Hardscape Plans  

 Plat   
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT - ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES, 

LOCATED SOUTH OF WEST LESTER ROAD, EAST OF VICK ROAD 

 

Request: APPROVAL OF THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT FOR ROCK 

SPRINGS ESTATES, LOCATED SOUTH OF WEST LESTER ROAD, 

EAST OF VICK ROAD; AND ISSUE THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT 

ORDER. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 

 
OWNER:   Rock Springs Estates, LLC  
 
APPLICANT:   Pulte Group, c/o Doug Hoffman, P.E. 
 
 ENGINEER:                         Donald W. McIntosh Associates, Inc., c/o John T. Townsend, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: South of West Lester Road and east of Vick Road. 
 
EXISTING USE:  One (1) single family residence/vacant land 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Residential Low Suburban (Max. 3.5 du/ac)  
 
ZONING:   R-1 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Single-family Residential Subdivision (60 Lots; min. 8,000 sq. ft. lot area) 
 
TRACT SIZE:   25.84 +/- acres 
 
DENSITY:                              2.32 du/ac 

 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION:      
 
Mayor Kilsheimer  Finance Director  Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)           HR Director         City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby           IT Director         Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director           Police Chief   
 
G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Subdivision\Rock Springs Estates\1 Rock Springs Estates FDP/PLAT – CC 06-17-15 

 Page 166



CITY COUNCIL – JUNE 17, 2015 

ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 
PAGE # 2 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City)  Res. Low Suburban (0 -3.5 du/ac) R-1 Vacant Land 

North (City) Residential Low (0-3.5 du/ac) A-2/ZIP Single Family Residence 

East (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-2 Single Family Residence 

South (County) Low Density Res. (Max. 4 du/ac) A-2 World of Life Church of Apopka 

South (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-3 Wekiva Crest Subdivision 

West (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-3 Cambridge Commons Subdivision 

 
Project Use:  The Rock Springs Estates Final Development Plan/Plat proposes the development of 60 single family 
residential lots and a 0.42 acre park.  The minimum typical lot width is 75 feet with a minimum lot size of 8,000 square feet.  
The proposed minimum living area for the subdivision is 1,500 square feet as set forth in Chapter 2 of the Land 
Development Code.      
 
The minimum setbacks applicable to this project are: 
 
 
 
 
 
        *Front-entry garage must be setback 30 feet. 
 
Access:  Ingress/egress for the development will be via full access from West Lester Road.  A second road 
connection is proposed at the southeast corner of the project.  Extension of this second road may occur at the 
time the abutting eastern parcel is developed for residential use.  A multi-use trail currently runs along the south 
side of Lester Road.  The landscape buffer tract along Lester Road has taken into consideration the presence of 
this multi-use trail.   
 
Stormwater: The two (2) retention ponds have been designed to meet the City’s Land Development Code 
requirements.   
 
Recreation: The developer is providing a 0.42 acre (18,200 sq. ft.) tot lot and recreation area.  At the time of the 
final development plan application, details of active and passive recreation equipment and facilities will be 
submitted for the City’s review. The park will be owned and maintained by the homeowners association.   
 
Buffer/Tree Program:  Buffers are provided consistent with the Land Development.  The City’s Land 
Development Code and Tree Bank policy authorize the City Council to require the applicant to make a 
contribution to the City’s Tree Bank to mitigate the remaining tree inches for the residential section. The 
Applicant has committed to pay $10.00 per deficient tree inch (totaling $580.00) into the Tree Bank prior to 
issuance of the initial Arbor/Clearing permit.  The landscaping median at the entrance to Rock Springs Estates 
will be placed into a separate tract that will be owned and maintained by the homeowners association. 
 
The following is a summary of the tree replacement program for this project: 
Total inches on-site:  1,042 
Total number of specimen trees: 8 
Total inches removed:  602 
Total inches retained: 440 
Total inches replaced:  544 
Total inches (Post Development): 
Total inches to be mitigated: 

984 
58 

Setback Min. Standard 
Front* 25’ 
Side 10’ 
Rear 20’ 
Corner 25’ 

Page 167



CITY COUNCIL – JUNE 17, 2015 

ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 
PAGE # 3 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  Affected Schools: Rock Springs Elementary, Apopka Memorial Middle 

and Apopka High School.  No development activity can occur until such time that a concurrency mitigation 

agreement or letter has been approved by OCPS.  The applicant has applied to OCPS for this agreement.  

 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the land use amendment and 
rezoning application for this property, and coordination occurred with County planning staff regarding impact 
on adjacent parcels.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
May 12, 2015 - Planning Commission, 5:01 p.m. 
June 17, 2015 - City Council, 7:00 p.m.  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT, subject to the findings of the staff report. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on May 12, 2015, recommended approval (7-0) of the ROCK 
SPRINGS ESTATES FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT, subject to the findings of the staff report. 
 
Approve the Final Development Plan/Plat for the Rock Springs Estates, owned by Rock Springs Estates, LLC, 
and issue the Final Development Order. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 168



CITY COUNCIL – JUNE 17, 2015 

ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 
PAGE # 4 

 
 

Application:  Rock Springs Estate Subdivision Final Development Plan/Plat 
Owner:  Rock Springs Estates, LLC 
Applicant:  Pulte Group, c/o Doug Hoffman, P.E. 
Project Eng.:  Donald W. McIntosh Associates, Inc., c/o John T. Townsend, P.E. 
Parcel ID No’s:    33-20-28-0000-00-015, 33-20-28-0000-00-118, 33-20-28-0000-00-003 
Total Acres:  25.84 +/- 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 
 

 
 
 

Subject 

Property 

Page 169



CITY COUNCIL – JUNE 17, 2015 

ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 
PAGE # 5 

 
 

 

Application:  Rock Springs Estate Subdivision Final Development Plan/Plat 

Owner:  Rock Springs Estates, LLC 

Applicant:  Pulte Group, c/o Doug Hoffman, P.E. 

Project Eng.:  Donald W. McIntosh Associates, Inc., c/o John T. Townsend, P.E. 

Parcel ID No’s:    33-20-28-0000-00-015, 33-20-28-0000-00-118, 33-20-28-0000-00-003 

Total Acres:  25.84 +/- 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 
 

 

Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. PLAT REVISION – Maudehelen, Ph. 3, owned by GK Maudehelen, LLLP; 

applicant/engineer Morris Engineering and Consulting, LLC, c/o Matthew J. Morris, 

P.E., for property located at 455 South Binion Road. (Parcel ID Nos. 07-21-28-0000-

00-004; 07-21-28-0000-00-052) 

  

Page 185



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

  X  PUBLIC HEARING      MEETING OF: June 17, 2015 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      FROM:  Community Development  

       PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map  

       OTHER:           Plat 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT:   MAUDEHELEN, PHASE 3 PLAT REVISIONS 

       

Request:   APPROVAL OF THE MAUDEHELEN, PHASE 3 PLAT 

REVISIONS; AND ISSUE THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT ORDER 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER:    GK Maudehelen, LLLP 
 
APPLICANT/ENGINEER:  Morris Engineering and Consulting, LLC 
     c/o Matthew J. Morris, P.E.  
 
LOCATION:   455 South Binion Road 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 07-21-28-0000-00-004; 07-21-28-0000-00-052 

 
FUTURE LAND USE:   Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) 
 
ZONING:    R-2 
 
EXISTING USE:   Vacant Land 
 
PROPOSED USE:   Single Family Residential Subdivision (48 Lots) 
      
TRACT SIZE:    17.36 +/- Acres  
 
DENSITY:    Proposed Phase 3: 2.73 units per gross acre 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk    
City Administrator Irby   IT Director    Fire Chief  
Community Dev. Director               Police Chief 
 
 
G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\SUBDIVISION PLANS\Maudehelen, Phase 3\1 Maudehelen, Phase 3 – Minor Plat Rev – CC – 06-17-15 

 

Page 186



CITY COUNCIL – JUNE 17, 2015 

MAUDEHELEN, PHASE 3 – MINOR PLAT REVISION 

PAGE 2 

 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Parks/Recreation A-1 YMCA Camp 

East (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-2 Maudehelen, Phase 1 & 2 

South (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-2 Vacant Land 

West (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-1AA Clear Lake Estates 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  

 

The Maudehelen, Phase 3, is a portion of the overall Maudehelen Subdivision that proposed four phases.  

The original Maudehelen, Phase 1 plat was recorded on January 26, 2006.  Subsquently, the Phase 2 plat 

was recorded on September 27, 2007.  The Final Development Plan for Phases 3 and 4, containing 63 

lots, was approved by City Council on February 18, 2009.  A revised Final Development Plan for Phase 3 

(48 lots) and Phase 4 (15 lots) was approved by City Council on December 18, 2013. 

 

Project Use:  The Maudehelen, Phase 3 Minor Plat Revision proposes the development of 48 single 

family residential lots.  The typical minimum lot width in Phase 3 is 80 feet with a minimum lot size of 

9,200 square feet.  The proposed minimum living area for Phase 3 is 1,800 square feet with a minimum 

requirement of 1,350 square feet as set forth in Chapter 2 of the Land Development Code.     The 

minimum setbacks applicable to this project are: 

 

Setback Min. Standard 

Front 25’* 

Side 7.5’ 

Rear 20’ 

Corner 25’ 

      *Front load garage 30’ 

 

Access:    Ingress/egress for the development will be via South Binion Road.   

 

Stormwater:  The retention ponds have been designed to meet the City’s Land Development Code 

requirements. 

 

Recreation: The developer has provided two active and passive recreation areas totaling 122,275 square 

feet.  The parks will serve the entire residential community and will be owned and maintained by the 

homeowners association. 

 

Environmental: A habitat management plan was submitted by the applicant.  Based on the results of this 

study, the developer must obtain approval from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection prior 

to commencing any site construction activity. 

 

 

Page 187



CITY COUNCIL – JUNE 17, 2015 

MAUDEHELEN, PHASE 3 – MINOR PLAT REVISION 

PAGE 3 

 

Buffer/Tree Program and Landscaping: Buffers provided are consistent with the Land Development Code. 

A ten-foot wide landscape buffer is proposed along South Binion Road with a six-foot high brick or 

masonry wall. Wall design must be approved by the Community Development Department prior to 

issuance of a building permit.   

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  Affected Schools: Apopka Elementary, Apopka Memorial Middle 

and Apopka High School.  No construction activity can occur, nor a plat recorded, until such time that a 

concurrency mitigation agreement has been approved by OCPS.    

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the land use 

amendment and rezoning application for this property, and coordination occurred with County planning 

staff regarding impact on adjacent parcels.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

June 9, 2015 - Planning Commission, 5:01 p.m. 

June 17, 2015 - City Council, 7:00 p.m. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval of the Maudehelen, Phase 3 - Plat 

Revision, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on June 9, 2015, recommended approval (6-0) of the 

Maudehelen, Phase 3 - Plat Revision, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

Approve the Maudehelen, Phase 3 - Plat Revision, subject to the findings of this staff report and issue the 

Final Development Order. 

 

This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

Page 188



CITY COUNCIL – JUNE 17, 2015 

MAUDEHELEN, PHASE 3 – MINOR PLAT REVISION 

PAGE 4 

 
 

MAUDEHELEN, PHASE 3 

Plat Revision 
Owner:  GK Maudehelen LLLP 

Applicant/Engineer: Morris Engineering and Consulting, Inc., c/o Matthew J. Morris, P.E. 

17.36 +/- Acres 

Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 48 Single Family Lots 
Parcel ID #s: 07-21-28-0000-00-004; 07-21-28-0000-00-052 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

Phase 3 

Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Administrative Report - Glenn A. Irby - City Administrator 

  

Page 194



Administrative Report 

June 17, 2015 

                  To: Mayor and City Council 
From:  Glenn Irby, City Administrator 
 

Page 195



Finance - May  

$253,414 
$538,429 

$1,080,720 

$315,133 

$2,123,970 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Sewer Impact  

$154,518 

$364,755 $351,042 
$263,945 

$861,543 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Water Impact 

$325,376 

$697,688 

$584,759 
$535,348 

$656,056 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Transportation Impact 

$748,200 $768,813 

$1,018,079 
$1,109,000 

$1,702,294 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

School Impact 

Page 196



Finance - May  

$111,108 

$194,348 
$245,640 $263,126 

$360,522 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Reuse Impact  

$14,945 

$33,265 
$40,496 $38,809 

$43,630 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Recreation Impact 

199 
193.9 

181.6 

171 
176.9 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Average Potable Water Billed 

95 

145 
161 

187 

140 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Potable Meters Set 

Page 197



Finance / Utility Billing - May 

5641 5848 
6462 

7349 7350 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

ACH   

7846 8180 8491 
11035 

9187 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Office Window   

3538 3421 3377 3197 

4680 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Drop Box   
11904 

11833 
11729 

11424 11447 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Drive-Up 

Window 

19361 21927 
24876 

27852 
31320 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Web   
38931 

36849 
35813 

33564 32977 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Mailed   

Page 198



Community Development - May  

41 48 
59 

39 44 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Arbor Permits 

$583 

$820 

$1,070 

$572 
$745 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Arbor Revenues 

$1,450 $4,901 

$46,550 

$1,950 $2,460 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Tree Bank Revenues 

Page 199



Community Development / Building - May  

36 
49 

59 
36 31 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Automated Phone 

System Requests   

907 994 916 

1971 2043 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Internet Inspection 

Requests 

2881 2673 
3720 

4349 

2929 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Office Inspection 

Requests 

Page 200



Community Development / Building - May  

1381 1476 
1694 1885 2011 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Permits Issued 

$45,882,161 

$98,768,584 

$64,149,994 $67,713,245 
$56,574,017 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Value of  

Construction 

57 
94 108 

211 

96 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Certificates of 

Occupancy Issued 

3823 3716 
4624 

6359 
5003 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Inspections  Performed 

Page 201



Public Services / Water Plants - May  

7.67 

7.13 7.12 
6.67 

7.18 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Water Plant – Average 

Daily Flow 

2.5 2.6 2.6 2.8 3.1 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Wastewater  Plant 

Average Daily Flow 

175 190 
141 156 

177.2 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Reclaimed Gallons 

Produced 
150 

176 
140 130 144 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Reclaimed Gallons 

Used 

Page 202



Public Services / Sanitation - May 

13368 13472 
13827 

14134 

14756 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Residential Customers 

637 641 642 

656 660 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Commercial Customers 

12695 13075 13594 
15319 15746 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Recycling Customers 

Page 203



Public Services / Water Conservation - May  

3 

56 

5 
10 8 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Program Rebates 

33 

9 
5 

19 

10 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Rain Sensors Issued 

103 
91 

67 
87 

104 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

System Evaluations 

$426  $426  

$1,000  

$1,395  

$347  

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Rebate Value 

Page 204



Public Services / Recreation - May  

596 

2140 

1332 1222 1048 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Program Events 
88 87 86 

70 

91 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Senior Programs 

1248 
988 963 1069 1106 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Facility Rentals 

38547 

74876 

100619 

46665 
65286 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Event Attendees 

Page 205



Fire - May 

1618 1614 

1698 

1835 

1912 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

EMS Calls For Service 

657 
625 

549 562 

619 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

NFIRS Calls For 

Service 

1211 

1318 1321 

1145 

1346 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Annual Inspections 

Page 206



Police - May  

1031 915 

1819 

1181 
1014 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Uniform Traffic Citations 

53 

69 

51 

30 
41 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

DUI Arrests 

395 

182 

374 
292 

147 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Warning Citations 

7 11 

211 

32 17 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Parking Citations 

Page 207



Police / Code Enforcement - May 

35 

64 

36 

69 

85 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Unkempt Cases 

30 35 32 

84 
76 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Disabled Vehicle Cases 

101 
148 150 

299 
264 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Total Code Enforcement Cases 

Page 208



Community Development - May  

129 123 
157 

137 148 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

New Business Tax 

112 

171 

62 68 67 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Business Tax Renewals 

Page 209



Visits      

 697 

Users        
550 

Page 
Views 
3275 

Pages/Visit  
4.74 

Avg. Visit 
Duration 
00:02:95 

% New 
Visits 

71.14% 

A.S.K. 

Apopka Service Kiosk 

January - May 

Page 210



Information Technology - May 

2261 

4513 4991 

6736 

9239 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Building Webpage Visits 

151610 

232775 

354117 

225857 247071 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Homepage Visits 

Page 211



Thank You 
 

For questions, call (407) 703-1750 

Page 212


	Top
	1. 06/17 - Presentation Wekiva High School
	2. 6/17/15 - Presentations - IEMO
	3. 6/17 - Presentations - Christine MOore
	4. 96/17/15 - Presentation
	AHA Players Presentation-June 11 2015.pdf

	1. 6/17/15 - minutes
	06-03-15.pdf

	2. 6/17/15 - Administrative bid minutes
	s0000144.pdf

	3. 06-17-15 - CC - Consent Agenda - Approve peddlers permit for TNT Fireworks - 1700 S. Orange Blossom Trail
	1 06-17-15 - TNT Fireworks - 1700 SOBT Peddlers Permit.pdf
	2 06-17-15 - TNT Fireworks - 1700 SOBT App.pdf

	4. 06-17-15 - CC - Consent Agenda - Approve peddlers permit for TNT Fireworks - 2302-2444 E. Semoran Blvd.
	1 06-17-15 - TNT Fireworks - 2302-2444 E Semoran Blvd Peddlers Permit.pdf
	2 06-17-15 - TNT Fireworks - 2302-2344 E Semoran Blvd App.pdf

	5. 06-17-15 - Consent Agenda - PS Geotech ext 1
	Geotech.pdf

	6. COUNCIL MEETING-JUNE 17, 2015-POLICE-BYRNE GRANT
	Grant - pd.pdf
	Notice Letter.pdf

	1. 6/17/15 - Ordinance No. 2436
	PPP Election Greensheet.docx
	Ord  2436 General Election.pdf
	City of Apopka Ord 2436166.pdf

	2. 6/17/15 - Reso No. 2015-11
	PROCUREMENT GS.pdf
	2015-11 Procurement Policy.pdf
	Procurement Policy.pdf
	Vendor Preference Analysis.pdf

	1. 06-17-15 - CC - Ordinances - 1st Rd - Ord #2435 - Change of Zoning/Master Plan - Silver Oak - Tallman Development Company
	1 Silver Oaks - PUD Master Plan - CC 06-17-15 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2435 - Silver Oaks - Tallman Development Co ZON_Master Plan.pdf
	3 Exhibit A - Silver Oaks - Tallman Development - Master Plan.pdf
	3a Exhibit A1 Silver Oak Master Plan Development Standards Changes 05-05-15.pdf
	4 Exhibit B - Disign Guidelines Mailbox Kiosks.pdf
	5 Exhibit C - Silver Oaks - Tallman Development - Site Data.pdf
	6 Exhibit D - Silver Oaks - Tallman Development - Parking Plan.pdf
	7 Exhibit E - Silver Oaks - Tallman Development - Parks &amp; Recreation Plan.pdf
	8 Exhibit F - Silver Oaks - Tallman Development - Landscape Plan.pdf
	9 Exhibit G - Silver Oaks - Tallman Development - Archtectural Renderings.pdf
	10 Exhibit H - Small Lot Overlay Ordinance.pdf

	2. 06-17-15 - CC - Site Plans - Final Development Plan/Plat - Rock Springs Estates
	1 Rock Springs Estates FDP_Plat - CC - 06-17-15.pdf
	2 Rock Springs Estates FDP_Landscape Plans.pdf
	3 Rock Springs Estates Hardscape Plan.pdf
	4 Rock Springs Estates Plat.pdf

	3. 06-17-15 - CC - Site Plans - Plat Revision - Maudehelen, Ph. 3 - GK Maudehelen, LLLP
	1 Maudehelen Ph 3 - Plat Revision - CC -06-17-15.pdf
	2 Maudehelen Ph 3 Plat Revision Plans.pdf

	1. 6/17/15 - Admin Report
	062015Administrative Report.pdf

	Bottom

